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SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

Net interest income
Net fee and commission income
Operating profit
Profit before income tax
Net profit
Earnings per share - basic (in PLN/EUR)
Earnings per share - diluted (in PLN/EUR)
Total net comprehensive income
Net cash used in operating activities
Net cash used in investing activities
Net cash used in financing activities
Total net cash flows

SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

Total assets

Total equity

Share capital

Number of shares (in thousand)

Book value per share (in PLN/EUR)
Diluted number of shares (in thousand)
Diluted book value per share (in PLN/EUR)
Total capital ratio (TCR)

Common equity Tier 1 (CET1)

Total own funds

Selected financial statement items have been translated to EUR
according to the following foreign exchange rates

items of the income statement, statement of comprehensive income
and statement of cash flows items - the rate is calculated as the
average of the NBP exchange rates prevailing as at the last day of
each month of the reporting period

items of the statement of financial position - the average NBP
exchange rate as at the last day of the reporting period
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in PLN‘000 in EUR'000
period from period from period from period from
01.01.2018 01.01.2017 01.01.2018 01.01.2017

t0 31.12.2018

t031.12.2017  |t0 31.12.2018  |to 31.12.2017

249,486 151,237 58,470 35,630
(4,785) (4,556) (1,121) (1,074)
122,215 71,395 28,642 16,820
122,215 71,395 28,642 16,820
85,849 51,419 20,120 12,114
0.07 0.05 0.02 0.01
0.07 0.05 0.02 0.01
178,630 40,488 41,864 9,538
(4,966,322) (8,069,444) (1,163,914) (1,901,063)
5,436 (615,796) 1,274 (145,074)
4,955,003 8,662,124 1,161,261 2,040,691
(5,883) (23,116) (1,379) (5,446)

in PLN000 in EUR'000

as at 31.12.2018

22,103,134
1,487,883
1,295,000
1,295,000

115
1,295,000
115
15.2%
1,393,847
1,393,847

31.12.2018

4.2669

4.3000

as at 31.12.2017 |as at 31.12.2018 |as at 31.12.2017

16,902,594 5,140,264 4,052,505
1,221,778 346,019 292,929
1,200,000 301,163 287,708
1,200,000 1,295,000 1,200,000

1.02 027 0.24

1,200,000 1,295,000 1,200,000

1.02 027 024

15.2% 15.2% 15.2%

1,194,623 324,150 286,418

1,194,623 324,150 286,418

31.12.2017

42447
41709
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF PKO BANK HIPOTECZNY SA
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
(IN PLN ‘000)

INCOME STATEMENT

INCOME STATEMENT Note
Interest income, including: 6
Interest income recognized under the effective interest rate method
Income similar to interest income on instruments measured at fair value through
profit or loss
Interest expense 6
Net interest income
Fee and commission income 7
Fee and commission expense 7
Net fee and commission income
Net gain/(loss) in financial instruments measured g
at fair value through profit or loss
Net foreign exchange gains/(losses) 9
Net income/(expense) on modification 1
Net credit losses 12
Other operating income 13
Other operating expenses 13
Net other operating income and expense
Administrative expenses 14
Tax on certain financial institutions 15
Operating profit
Profit before income tax
Income tax expense 16
Net profit
Earnings per share - basic (PLN) 17
Earnings per share - diluted (PLN) 17

Weighted average number of ordinary shares during the period (in thousand)
Weighted average diluted number of ordinary shares during the period
(in thousand)

The notes on pages 9 to 98 are an integral part of the financial
statements

01.01.2018 -
31.12.2018

667,595
666,411

1,184

(418,109)
249,486
14,769
(19,554)
(4,785)

89

(238)
(439)
(8,703)
613
(559)
54
(52,484)
(60,765)
122,215
122,215
(36,366)

85,849

0.07
0.07
1,222,123

1,222,123

01.01.2017 -
31.12.2017

410,494
409,657

837

(259,257)
151,237
11,067
(15,623)
(4,556)

(265)
991

(3,283)
1,313
(1,296)
17
(41,047)
(31,699)
71,395
71,395
(19,976)

51,419

0.05
0.05
967,123

967,123
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF PKO BANK HIPOTECZNY SA
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME Note

Net profit
Other comprehensive income
Items which may be reclassified to profit or loss
Cash flow hedges (gross)
Related tax
Cash flow hedges (net) 20
Unrealized net gains on available-for-sale financial assets (gross)
Related tax
Unrealized net gains on available-for-sale financial assets (net)
Remeasurement of financial assets measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income (gross)
Related tax

Remeasurement of financial assets measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income (net)

Total net comprehensive income

The notes on pages 9 to 98 are an integral part of the financial
statements

01.01.2018 -
31.12.2018

85,849
92,781
92,781
12,141
(21,307)
90,834

2,404
(457)
1,947

178,630

01.01.2017 -
31.12.2017

51,419
(10,931)
(10,931)
(16,860)

3,203
(13,657)
3,366
(640)
2,726

40,488
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

o
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION Note
ASSETS
Cash and balances with the Central Bank 18
Amounts due from banks 19
measured at amortized cost
Derivative hedging instruments 20
Securities 21
available for sale
measured at fair value through other comprehensive income
Loans and advances to customers 22
measured at amortized cost
Intangible assets 25
Property, plant and equipment 25
Other assets 26
TOTAL ASSETS
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Liabilities
Amounts due to banks 27
measured at amortized cost
Derivative hedging instruments 20
Amounts due to customers 28
measured at amortized cost
Mortgage covered bonds issued 29
measured at amortized cost
Unsecured bonds issued 30
measured at amortized cost
Other liabilities 31
Current income tax liabilities 16
Deferred income tax provision 16
Provisions 32
TOTAL LIABILITIES
Equity
Share capital 33
Supplementary capital
Accumulated other comprehensive income
Retained earnings
Net profit for the period
TOTAL EQUITY
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Total capital ratio (TCR) 53
Book value (in PLN thousand)
Number of shares (in thousand) 33

Book value per share (in PLN)
Diluted number of shares (in thousand)
Diluted book value per share (in PLN)

The notes on pages 9 to 98 are an integral part of the financial
statements

31.12.2018

6
22
22
168,289
842,965

842,965
21,070,469
21,070,469

4,165

449

16,769
22,103,134

4,292,286
4,292,286
15,254
4,359
4,359
12,841,500
12,841,500
3,311,148
3,311,148
121974
3,159
25,303
268
20,615,251

1,295,000
54,932
63,889

(11,787)
85,849
1,487,883

22,103,135

15.2%
1,487,883
1,295,000

115
1,295,000
1.15

31.12.2017

561
5,350
5,350

338

830,489
830,489

16,042,473
16,042,473
5,584

570

17,229
16,902,594

4,125,379
4,125,379
217,777
2,099
2,099
8,883,213
8,883,213
2,428,025
2,428,025
17,441
3,507
3,237

138
15,680,816

1,200,000

(28,892)
(749)
51,419
1,221,778

16,902,594

15.2%
1,221,778
1,200,000

1.02
1,200,000
1.02
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Accumulated other comprehensive income

FOR THE YEAR ENDE h | Retai Net profit fi .
9 ol Note . a.re SupP ementary Cash flow Financial assets measured eta!ned ¢ prq 1 for Total equity
31 DECEMBER 2018 capital capital . earnings the period
hedges at fair value through OCI
31 December 2017 1,200,000 - (31,372) 2,480 (749) 51,419 1,221,778
Changes due to IFRS 9 implementation - - - - (11,787) - (11,787)
As at 1 January 2018 (restated) 33 1,200,000 - (31,372) 2,480 (12,536) 51,419 1,209,991
Issue of series H shares 33 95,000 4262 - - - - 99,262
Transfer from retained earnings 33 - - - - 51,419 (51,419) -
Transfer of the profit to equity - 50,670 - - (50,670) - -
Total comprehensive income, of which: - - 90,834 1,947 - 85,849 178,630
Net profit for the year - - - - - 85,849 85,849
Other comprehensive income - - 90,834 1,947 - - 92,781
31 December 2018 1,295,000 54,932 59,462 4,427 (11,787) 85,849 1,487,883
Accumulated other comprehensive income
FOR THE YEAR ENDE h | Retained Net profit fi .
3? DECEMBER 20 107 0 Note faoirt(;l i:pi[::imentarg Cash flow Financial assets measured e::g::es th: pg:;(: d or Total equity
P P hedges at fair value through OCI 9 P
31 December 2016 800,000 - (17,715) (246) (13,973) 13,224 781,290
Transfer from retained earnings - - - - 13,224 (13,224) -
Issue of series E shares 33 150,000 - - - - - 150,000
Issue of series F shares 33 150,000 - - - - - 150,000
Issue of series G shares 33 100,000 - - - - - 100,000
Total comprehensive income, of which: - - (13,657) 2,726 - 51,419 40,488
Net profit for the year - - - - - 51,419 51,419
Other comprehensive income - - (13,657) 2,726 - - (10,931)
31 December 2017 1,200,000 - (31,372) 2,480 (749) 51,419 1,221,778

The notes on pages 9 to 98 are an integral part of the financial statements. Page 6/98
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before tax
Total adjustments and changes:
Amortization and depreciation
Interest on mortgage covered bonds issued and loans obtained

Change in securities designated at fair value through profit or loss upon initial recognition

Change in derivative financial instruments (asset)

Change in loans and advances to customers (gross)

Change in other assets

Change in amounts due to banks

Change in derivative financial instruments (liability)

Change in amounts due to customers

Change in mortgage covered bonds issued

Change in unsecured bonds issued

Change in allowances for expected credit losses

Change in other liabilities, excluding liabilities in respect of

unregistered issues of own shares

Income tax paid

Other adjustments (including changes in the measurement of securities and derivative

instruments recognized in other comprehensive income)
Net cash flows used in operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Inflows from investing activities
Disposal of and interest on available-for-sale investment securities
Disposal of and interest on securities measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income

Outflows from investing activities
Acquisition of available-for-sale investment securities
Acquisition of securities measured at fair value through other comprehensive income
Acquisition of intangible assets and property, plant and equipment

Net cash flows used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from issue of own shares and payments towards issue of own shares
Proceeds from issue of mortgage covered bonds
Proceeds from issue of unsecured bonds
Redemption of unsecured bonds issued
Proceeds from loans obtained
Proceeds from loans repaid
Interest on mortgage covered bonds issued and loans obtained
Net cash flows used in financing activities

Total net cash flows

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period

The notes on pages 9 to 98 are an integral part of the financial statements.

Nota

37

01.01.2018 -
31.12.2018

122,215
(5,088,537)
2177
132,334

(167,951)
(5,051,060)
460
(188,873)
(202,523)
2,260
249,177
59,338
8,642

4,533
(33,646)
95,995

(4,966,322)

195,325

195,325
(189,889)

(189,252)
(637)
5,436

199,262
3,708,510
7,171,985

(6,948,200)
5,380,879
(5,025,099)
(132,334)
4,955,003

(5,883)
5911
28
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01.01.2017 -
31.12.2017

71,395
(8,140,838)
1,487
59,389

80,000

27,471
(7,797,882)
(2,851)
(535,460)
217,664
549
(204,428)
39,829
3,307

5,245
(8,229)
(26,929)

(8,069,444)

6,204
6,204

(622,000)
(620,251)

(1,749)
(615,796)

400,000
5,855,524
6,141,581

(4,904,600)
4,055,122
(2,826,114)

(59,389)

8,662,124

(23,116)
29,027
5911
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. GENERAL INFORMATION

BANKING ACTIVITIES

PKO Bank Hipoteczny Spotka Akcyjna (“PKO Bank Hipoteczny SA”, “Bank”) with its registered office in Gdynia,
ul. Jerzego Waszyngtona 17, 81-342 Gdynia, was entered in the Register of Businesses maintained by the District
Court Gdansk-Pétnoc in Gdansk, 8th Business Department of the National Court Register, with the number KRS
0000528469, on 24 October 2014. The Bank was assigned the statistical number REGON 222181030. Its share
capital as at 31 December 2018 was PLN 1,295,000,000 and was fully paid up.

PKO Bank Hipoteczny SA is a specialized bank that operates on the basis of the Polish Covered Bonds and Mortgage
Banks Act dated 29 August 1997, the Banking Act of 29 August 1997, the Commercial Companies Code and other
generally applicable provisions of the law, the principles of good banking practice and the Bank’s Statute.

The Bank specializes in granting mortgage loans for individuals and acquires receivables following from such loans
from PKO Bank Polski SA. The Bank acquires loans for its portfolio based on strategic cooperation with PKO Bank
Polski SA.

The Bank’s principal business objective is to issue mortgage covered bonds, which are to serve as the primary source
of long-term financing for the mortgage loans.

INDICATION WHETHER THE BANK IS A PARENT OR KEY INVESTOR AND WHETHER IT PREPARES CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PKO Bank Hipoteczny SA is not a parent or a significant investor in associates and jointly controlled entities.
Therefore, PKO Bank Hipoteczny SA does not prepare consolidated financial statements.

The Parent of PKO Bank Hipoteczny SA is PKO Bank Polski SA, which prepares consolidated financial statements for
the PKO Bank Polski Group.

COMPOSITION OF THE BANK’S SUPERVISORY BOARD AND MANAGEMENT BOARD

The following table presents the composition of the Supervisory Board of PKO Bank Hipoteczny SA during the period
covered by the financial statements:

No. Name and surname Position Date of appointment Date of dismissal /

resignation
1 Jakub Papierski Chairman of the Supervisory Board 06.10.2014 -
2 Piotr Mazur Deputy Chairman of the Supervisory Board 06.10.2014 -
3 Justyna Borkiewicz Member of the Supervisory Board 28.10.2016 -
4 Artur Kluczny Member of the Supervisory Board (independent) 18.10.2017 -
5 Rafat Koztowski Member of the Supervisory Board 09.02.2018 -
6 Mieczystaw Krol Member of the Supervisory Board 28.10.2016 -
7 Piotr Kwiecien Member of the Supervisory Board (independent) 18.10.2017 -
8 Jan Emeryk Rosciszewski Member of the Supervisory Board 18.10.2017 -
9 Bartosz Drabikowski Member of the Supervisory Board 18.10.2017 15.01.2018

The following table presents the composition of the Management Board of PKO Bank Hipoteczny SA during the period
covered by the financial statements:

No. Name and surname Position Date of appointment bl il

resignation
1 Paulina Strugata President of the Management Board 16.04.2018 -
2 Agnieszka Krawczyk Vice-President of the Management Board 01.01.2018 -
3 Jakub Niestuchowski Vice-President of the Management Board 01.04.2015 -
4 Marek SzczeSniak Vice-President of the Management Board 01.06.2015 26.11.2018

In connection with the resignation of Mr Rafat Koztowski as President of the Management Board, on 28 December
2017, the Supervisory Board entrusted the organizational and procedural duties of the President of the Bank’s
Management Board to Mr Jakub Niestuchowski with effect from 1 January 2018 until a new President of the
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Management Board is appointed and appointed Ms Agnieszka Krawczyk Vice-President of the Bank’s Management
Board as of 1 January 2018.

On 4 April 2018 the Supervisory Board of PKO Bank Hipoteczny SA appointed Ms Paulina Strugata President of the
Bank’s Management Board as of 16 April 2018, on condition and as of the date of the Polish Financial Supervision
Authority (PFSA) granting consent to her appointment as President of the Bank’ Management Board. Until the PFSA
granted its consent on 12 June 2018, Paulina Strugata performed the function of vice president of the Bank's
Management Board and acted as President of the Board.

In connection with the resignation of Mr Marek Szcze$niak as Vice-President of the Bank’s Management Board as of
26 November 2018, on 12 December 2018, the Supervisory Board of Bank Hipoteczny SA appointed Mr Piotr
Kochanek Vice-President of the Bank’s Management Board with effect from 1 January 2019. In addition, the
Supervisory Board decided to entrust Mr Piotr Kochanek management of material risks in the Bank’s operations,
subject to obtaining permission from the PFSA.

2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements of PKO Bank Hipoteczny Spotka Akcyjna cover the year ended 31 December 2018 and
include comparative data for the year ended 31 December 2017. The financial data is presented in thousands of
Polish zlotys (PLN), rounded to a thousand, unless otherwise indicated.

2.1 STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial reporting Standards (IFRS)
endorsed by the European Union as at 31 December 2018, and to the extent not governed by the said standards, in
accordance with the requirements of the Accounting Act of 29 September 1994 and implementing requlations issued
on the basis of the said Act, and the requirements applicable to issuers of securities admitted or seeking admission to
trading on a market for official stock exchange listing.

2.2 GOING CONCERN

The financial statements have been prepared on the assumption of the Bank continuing its business activities in the
foreseeable future (i.e. in the period of at least 12 months of the end of the reporting period). As at the date of signing
these financial statements, the Management Board has not identified any facts or circumstances which would
indicate any threats to the Bank’s ability to continue as a going concern for at least 12 months of the end of the
reporting period as a result of intended or forced discontinuing or significantly curtailing the Bank’s existing
operations.

2.3 BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

In the financial statements, the concept of fair value was applied to financial assets and financial liabilities measured
at fair value through profit or loss or through other comprehensive income, including derivative instruments, and to
securities measured at fair value through other comprehensive income. Other components of financial assets and
financial liabilities (including loans and advances) are reported at amortized cost, using the effective interest rate
method, less allowances for expected credit losses in the case of financial assets.

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation/amortization
and impairment allowances. Property, plant and equipment classified as held for sale are stated at the lower of their
book value and fair value less costs to sell.

The Bank recognized all items of costs and income in accordance with the accruals basis, the matching principle, the
principles of recognition and measurement of assets and liabilities, and the recognition of impairment allowances.
Accounting policies applicable to individual items are presented in the notes to the statement of financial position and
to the income statement.

When preparing the financial statements, the Bank makes certain estimates and adopts assumptions which directly
affect the financial statements. The estimates and assumptions that are used by the Bank in determining the value of
its assets and liabilities, as well as revenues and costs, are made based on historical data and other factors which are
available and are considered to be proper in the given circumstances.

Assumptions regarding the future and the data available are used for assessing carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities which cannot be unequivocally determined using other sources. In making estimates, the Bank takes into
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consideration the reasons and sources of the uncertainties that are anticipated at the end of the reporting period.
Actual results may differ from the estimates.

Estimates and assumptions made by the Bank are subject to reviews on an on-going basis. Adjustments to estimates
are recognized in the periods in which the estimates were adjusted, provided that these adjustments only affect a
given period. If the adjustments affect both the period in which the adjustment was made as well as future periods,
they are recognized in the period in which the adjustments were made and in future periods.

24 APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

These financial statements, having been reviewed with an opinion issued by the Audit and Finance Committee of the
Supervisory Board on 21 February 2019 and evaluated by the Supervisory Board on 27 February 2019, were
approved by the Bank’s Management Board for publication on 27 February 2019.

3. DESCRIPTION OF MAJOR ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The most important accounting policies, estimates and judgements applied when preparing these financial statements
have been presented in the Notes to the financial statements. The accounting policies were applied consistently in all
the reporting periods presented, excluding changes relating to the implementation of IFRS 9.

The list of accounting policies and important estimates and judgments for specific items of the income statement and
statement of financial position have been presented below.

Accounting Major estimates
INCOME STATEMENT Note L) . 1)
policies and judgments
Interest income and expense 6 Y
Fee and commission income and expense 7 Y
Net gain/(loss) on financial instruments measured at fair value through profit or 8 v v
loss
net foreign exchange gains/(losses) 9 Y Y
Gains/(losses) on derecogpnition of financial assets and financial liabilities not 10 v
measured at fair value through profit or loss
Net income/(expense) on modification 11 Y
Net credit losses 12 Y Y
Net other operating income and expense 13 Y
Administrative expenses 14 Y Y
Tax on certain financial institutions 15 Y
Income tax expense 16 Y
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION Note ccounting Major estimates
policies and judgments
Cash and balances with the Central Bank 18 Y
Amounts due from banks 19 Y
Derivative hedging instruments 20 Y Y
Securities 21 Y
Loans and advances to customers 22 Y Y
Intangible assets 25 Y Y
Property, plant and equipment 25 Y Y
Other assets 26 Y
Amounts due to banks 27 Y
Amounts due to customers 28 Y
Mortgage covered bonds issued 29 Y
Unsecured bonds issued 30 Y
Other liabilities 31 Y
Provisions 32 Y Y
Equity 33 Y

Y Letter “Y” means an accounting policies and major estimates and judgements included in the Notes to the financial statements
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3.1 FOREIGN CURRENCIES

FUNCTIONAL CURRENCY AND CURRENCY OF PRESENTATION

These financial statements are presented in Polish zloties which are the Bank’s functional currency and the currency
of presentation.

TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES IN FOREIGN CURRENCIES

Transactions expressed in foreign currencies are translated into functional currency at the exchange rate applicable
on the transaction date. At the end of each reporting period, the Bank translates:

= monetary items in foreign currencies - at the closing exchange rate, i.e. the average exchange rate announced by
the National Bank of Poland applicable at the end of the reporting period;

= non-monetary items carried at historical cost in foreign currencies - using the exchange rate as at the date of
the transaction;

= non-monetary items carried at fair value in foreign currencies - are translated using the exchange rates that
existed when the fair values were determined.

Gains and losses resulting from the settlement of these transactions and the measurement of monetary assets and
liabilities expressed in foreign currencies are recognized in the income statement.

3.2 RECOGNITION OF TRANSACTIONS IN THE BOOKS OF ACCOUNT

Financial assets and financial liabilities, including forward contracts which result in an obligation or a right to buy or
sell a fixed quantity of specific financial instruments at a fixed price at a future date are recognized in the books of
account as at the date of the contract being concluded, irrespective of the contractual settlement date.

33 DERECOGNITION OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

A financial asset is derecognized when contractual rights to cash flows from the financial assets expire or when the
Bank transfers the financial assets to another entity. Such transfer takes place when the Bank:

= transfers contractual rights to cash flows from the financial asset, or

=  retains contractual rights to cash flows from the financial assets but assumes a contractual obligation to
transfer these cash flows to a third party.

When transferring a financial asset, the Bank makes an assessment of the extent to which it retains the risks and
rewards of the ownership of the financial asset. In such a case:

= if the Bank transfers substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of a financial asset, the Bank excludes the
financial asset from the statement of financial position;

= if the Bank retains substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of a financial asset, the Bank continues to
present the financial asset in the statement of financial position;

= If the Bank neither transfers nor retains substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of a financial asset, the
Bank determines whether or not it retained control over the financial asset. If control has been retained, the
financial asset is recognized in the Bank’s statement of financial position up to the amount resulting from
permanent involvement. Otherwise, the financial asset is derecognized.

The Bank derecognizes a financial liability (or a part thereof) if and when it is no longer binding, i.e. when
a contractual liability has been settled, annulled, or has expired.

4. IFRS 9 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

IFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” was published in July 2014 and adopted for use in the European Union on
22 November 2016 by Regulation No. 2016/2067 of the European Commission. The standard is binding for financial
statements prepared for periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018 (with the exception of insurance companies
which may apply the standard as of 1 January 2021). The standard replaces IAS 39 “Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement”. The classification and measurement of financial instruments, recognition and
calculation of impairment and hedge accounting have changed.
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4.1 CLASSIFICATION AND MEASUREMENT
4.1.1. POLICIES FOR THE CLASSIFICATION OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Following the application of IFRS 9, as of 1 January 2018 the Bank classifies its financial assets to one of the
following categories:

= assets carried at amortized cost;

= assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income;

= assets measured at fair value through profit or loss.

Classification as at the date of acquisition or arising of an asset depends on the business model adopted by the Bank
to manage a given group of assets and the contractual characteristics of the cash flows from a single asset or group
of assets. The Bank distinguishes the following business models:

= “held to collect” - a model according to which financial assets which were acquired or arose are held to benefit
from contractual cash flows - a model typical for lending operations;

= “held to collect or sell” - a model according to which financial assets which after their acquisition or arising are
held to benefit from contractual cash flows, but which may also be sold (a model typical for liquidity
management);

= residual - other than the model “held to collect”, and “held to collect or sell.

Financial instruments are classified at the moment of the first application of IFRS 9, i.e. as at 1 January 2018 and as at
the moment of recognition of an instrument or its material modification. Changes in the classification of financial
assets may result from changes in the business model. Changes in the model are conditioned by changes occurring
inside or outside the Bank, or before or after the end of a given type of operation; therefore, such changes do not
often occur.

BUSINESS MODEL

Business models are selected at initial recognition of financial assets. It is selected at the level of particular groups of
assets, in the context of the area of operations in connection with which the financial assets arose or were acquired,
and is based, among other things, on:

= manner of assessing and reporting financial asset portfolio results;
= manner of managing those assets’ risk and policies for remunerating asset managers.

In the business model “held to collect” sale of assets is incidental and may only be accomplished in the event of
increased credit risk, changes in laws or requlations - to maintain the assumed regulatory capital level, on the terms
and conditions described in the management strategies of such portfolios or on condition that the sale is close to
maturity, in the event of a drop in credit rating below the level assumed for the given portfolio, material internal
restructuring or acquiring another business, pursuing a crisis or repair plan and other unforeseeable factors on which
the Bank has no influence.

ASSESSMENT OF THE CHARACTERISTICS RESULTING FROM CONTRACTUAL CASH FLOWS

Characteristics resulting from contractual cash flows are assessed by determining, on the basis of a qualitative SPPI
test, whether the cash flows resulting from the asset constitute solely payments of principal and interest on the
amount remaining to be repaid. Interest comprises the payment for the time value of money and the credit risk
connected with the value of the remaining exposure during a specified period, and for other basic risks and costs
related to granting the loan, as well as a profit margin.

The characteristics resulting from contractual cash flows have no impact on the classification of financial assets if:
= it would only have an insignificant impact on the contractual cash flows from the asset (de minimis feature);

= it has an impact on the contractual cash flows from the instrument only if an extremely rare, atypical and
unlikely event occurs (non-genuine feature).

To determine this, the potential impact of characteristics resulting from contractual cash flows in each reporting
period and throughout the life cycle of the financial instrument are taken into account.

SPPI tests are conducted for each financial asset in the model “held to collect” or “held to collect and sell” as at the
date of initial recognition (including for material modifications after re-recognizing the financial asset) and as at the
date of a change in the characteristics of contractual cash flows.
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CATEGORY OF MEASUREMENT OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AT AMORTIZED COST

A financial asset (this relates to debt financial assets) is measured at amortized cost if the following conditions are
jointly met:

. a financial asset is “held to collect”;

=  the contractual terms relating to the financial asset cause cash flows to arise in certain periods are solely
payments of principal and interest (SPPI test).

The original value of an asset measured at amortized cost is adjusted by all commissions and fees with an impact on
its effective return which constitute an integral part of the effective interest rate on the asset (commissions and fees
arising as a result of the Bank conducting activities which lead to the asset arising). Commissions and fees which
arise after the date of the financial asset being established lead to changes in future cash flow schedules generated
by the assets.

The present value of this category of assets is determined using the effective interest rate described in subpar. 3.1.5,
used to determine (accrue) interest income generated by the asset in the given period, on a current basis, adjusting it
by allowances for expected credit losses.

Assets for which no future cash flow schedule may be determined, necessary to calculate the effective interest rate,
are not measured at amortized cost. They are measured at the amount payable which also covers interest on the
amounts due, taking into consideration allowances for expected credit losses. Commissions and fees related to those
assets arising or decisive for their financial features have to be deferred over the life cycle of the asset on a straight-
line basis and are included in fee and commission income.

The straight-line basis used to account for specific fees and commissions consists of their systematic transfer to
income statement, in proportion to the life of the product. Systematic accounting for specific fees and commissions is
done on a monthly basis.

CATEGORY OF MEASUREMENT OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

A financial asset (this relates to debt financial assets) is measured at amortized cost through other comprehensive
income if the following conditions are jointly met:

= the financial asset is held in accordance with the business model aimed at both receiving contractual cash flows
and selling the asset; and

= the contractual terms relating to the financial asset cause cash flows to arise in certain periods, which are only
the result of repayment of the principal amount and the interest on the principal amount remaining to be repaid.

Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income are measured at fair value.

The effects of changes in the fair value of such financial assets, until derecognition or reclassification, are recognized
in other comprehensive income, with the exception of interest income, net expected credit losses and foreign
exchange gains and losses, which are recognized in the income statement. If a financial asset has been derecognized,
accumulated gains and losses previously reported in other comprehensive income are reclassified from other
comprehensive income to the income statement.

CATEGORY OF MEASUREMENT OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

If financial assets do not meet the qualification criteria set out above to be measured at amortized cost, or at fair
value through other comprehensive income, they are classified to financial assets measured at fair value through
profit or loss.

In addition, upon initial recognition, a financial asset may be irrevocably designated as measured at fair value
through profit or loss (the option of measurement at fair value through profit or loss), provided that this will eliminate
or significantly reduce inconsistency in the measurement or recognition (accounting mismatch). This option is
available for debt instruments both under the “held to collect”, and “held to collect and sell” models.

Pursuant to IFRS 9 assets measured at fair value through profit or loss are presented as follows:
1) held for trading - financial assets which:
= have been purchased mainly to sell or redeem in the foreseeable future; or

= upon initial recognition constitute part of a portfolio of specific financial instruments which are managed jointly
and for which there is evidence that they currently generate short-term profits; or
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= are derivative financial instruments (with the exception of derivatives which are financial guarantee agreements
or designated and effective hedges);

2) financial assets not held for trading, mandatorily measured at fair value through profit or loss - financial assets
which have not met the criterion of cash flow characteristics (the SPPI test) (irrespective of a business model);

3) financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss at initial recognition (the option of measurement at
fair value through profit or loss).

Gains or losses on a financial asset measured at fair value through profit or loss are recognized in the income
statement.

4.1.2. CHANGE IN CLASSIFICATION OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

Financial assets may be reclassified only in the event of a change in the business model referring to an asset or
a group of assets resulting from the start or discontinuation of a material part of operations. Such changes are
incidental. Changes in classification are recognized prospectively, i.e. without changing the effects of fair value
measurement, allowances or interest accrued, recognized to-date.

The following are not considered to be changes in the business model:

= changes in intentions related to concrete financial assets (even in the event of significant changes in market
conditions);

=  provisional disappearance of a specific financial assets market;

= transfer of financial assets between areas of operations using different business models.

In the event of reclassification of a financial asset from measured at amortized cost to measured at fair value through
profit or loss, the fair value of the asset is determined as at the reclassification date. All gains and losses resulting
from the difference between the previous recognition of a financial asset at amortized cost and its fair value are
recognized in the income statement.

In the event of reclassification of a financial asset from measured at fair value through profit or loss to measured at
amortized cost, the fair value of the asset becomes its new gross carrying amount as at the reclassification date. The
effective interest rate is determined based on the fair value of an asset as at the reclassification date.

In the event of reclassification of a financial asset from measured at amortized cost to measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income, the fair value of the asset is determined as at the reclassification date. All gains and
losses resulting from the difference between the previous recognition of a financial asset at amortized cost and its fair
value are recognized in other comprehensive income. The effective interest rate and the expected credit losses are not
adjusted as a result of the reclassification.

In the event of reclassification of a financial asset from measured at fair value through other comprehensive income
to measured at amortized cost, the asset is recognized at fair value as at the reclassification date. Accumulated gains
or losses which had been recognized in other comprehensive income are derecognized from equity and adjusted
based on the fair value of the financial asset as at the reclassification date. Therefore, the financial asset is measured
as at the reclassification date as if it had always been measured at amortized cost. This adjustment relates to other
comprehensive income and has no impact on the income statement, therefore, it is not a reclassification adjustment
according to IAS 1. The effective interest rate and the expected credit losses are not adjusted as a result of this
reclassification.

In the event of reclassification of a financial asset from measured at fair value through profit or loss to measured at
fair value through other comprehensive income, the asset continues to be recognized at fair value. The effective
interest rate is determined based on the fair value of an asset as at the reclassification date.

In the event of reclassification of a financial asset from measured at fair value through other comprehensive income
to measured at fair value through profit or loss, the asset continues to be recognized at fair value. Accumulated gains
or losses previously recognized in other comprehensive income are reclassified from equity to profit or loss in the
form of a reclassification adjustment pursuant to IAS 1, as at the reclassification date.

4.1.3. CHANGE IN ESTIMATED CONTRACTUAL CASH FLOWS — MODIFICATIONS

A modification is a change in contractual flows of a financial asset based on an annexe to the respective contract.
A modification may be material or immaterial. Changes in contractual flows resulting from meeting the contractual
terms and conditions are not considered to be modifications.
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If the cash flows resulting from a contract related to a financial asset are subject to renegotiation or any other
modification, and the renegotiation or modification does not lead to derecognition of the given financial asset
(“IMMATERIAL MODIFICATION”) the gross carrying amount of the financial asset is recalculated and respective gains or
losses on modification are recognized in the income statement. Adjustments to the carrying amounts of financial
assets due to modifications are accounted for in net interest income/cost using the effective interest rate. The
carrying amount of a financial asset is calculated as the present value of renegotiated or modified contractual cash
flows discounted at the original effective interest rate of the financial asset (or effective interest rate adjusted by
credit risk in the event of purchased or created impaired financial assets) or, if applicable (e.g. for gains or losses on
hedges), at the updated effective interest rate. All the costs and fees incurred adjust the carrying amount of the
modified financial asset and are amortized over the period to maturity of the modified financial asset.

In some situations renegotiation or modification of contractual cash flows related to a financial asset may lead to
derecognition of the given financial asset. If the modification of a financial asset leads to its derecognition and then to
the recognition of a modified financial asset, the modified financial asset is considered to be a new financial asset
(“MATERIAL MODIFICATION”). The new asset is recognized at fair value and a new effective interest rate is calculated to
be applied to the new asset. In the event that the characteristics of the modified new financial asset (after conclusion
of the annexe) reflects the arm’s length basis, the carrying amount of the financial asset constitutes its fair value.

The assessment of whether the given modification of financial assets is material or immaterial depends on the
qualitative and quantitative criteria being met.

The adopted QUALITATIVE CRITERIA are as follows:

= change in debtor, with the exception of a change following from the debtor’s death;

= introducing a contractual feature to the contract which leads to failing the cash flow characteristics test or
removal of the feature;

= currency conversion;

= an increase in a debtor’s exposure which includes the value of a capital increase and loan commitments
exceeding 10% in relation to equity and loan commitments before the increase for each individual exposure.

If at least one of the criteria is present, a material modification occurs.

The adopted QUANTITATIVE CRITERION constitutes a 10% test consisting of analysing the changes in the contractual
terms of a financial asset resulting in a difference arising between the amount of the future cash flows from the
changes in the financial asset discounted using the effective interest rate and the amount of corresponding future
cash flows from the original financial asset discounted using the same interest rate.

If the quantitative criterion (difference) exceeds 10%, the modification is considered material. The quantitative criterion
does not apply to loans under restructuring (i.e. the modification is immaterial).

4.1.4. MEASUREMENT OF PURCHASED OR ORIGINATED CREDIT-IMPAIRED ASSETS (POCI)

IFRS 9 distinguishes a new category of purchased or originated credit-impaired assets (hereinafter “POCI”).

POCI assets are debt financial assets measured at amortized cost and at fair value through other comprehensive
income, i.e. loans and debt securities. Those assets are initially recognized in net amounts (net of impairment
allowances) which reflect their fair value. Interest income on POCI assets is calculated on the net carrying amount
using the effective interest rate adjusted by credit risk recognized over the life of the asset. Credit-risk adjusted
effective interest rate is calculated in consideration of the future cash flows adjusted by the effect of credit risk
recognized over the life of the asset. The change in estimates of future recoveries in further reporting periods is
recognized as an impairment loss or revaluation gain in the income statement.

4.1.5. INTEREST INCOME

Interest income is calculated using the effective interest rate described used to determine (accrue) interest income
generated by the asset in the given period, on the gross carrying amount of the financial asset, with the exception of:

= purchased or originated credit-impaired assets (see subpar. 4.1.4). With respect to those financial assets, the
credit-risk adjusted effective interest rate is applied to the amount of amortized cost of the financial asset (net
carrying amount) as of the moment of initial recognition (POCI assets).

=  financial assets which are not POCI, which then became impaired. In respect of those financial assets the
original effective interest rate is applied (i.e. from the moment of recognition of the impairment premises) to
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determine the value of the financial assets at amortized cost (net carrying amount) in the following reporting
periods.

4.1.6. CHANGES IN CLASSIFICATION AND MEASUREMENT IN CONNECTION WITH THE IMPLEMENTATION OF IFRS 9

In connection with the implementation of IFRS 9 from 1 January 2018:

= loans and advances to customers are measured at amortized cost, since the “held to collect” model applies to
them and they meet the SPPI test;

=  securities are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income, since the “held to collect and sell”
model applies to them and they meet the SPPI test.

4.2 IMPAIRMENT

In the area of impairment, the Bank applies IFRS 9, which is based on the concept of expected losses.

The impairment model applies to financial assets which are not measured at fair value through profit or loss, and
which comprise:

= debt financial instruments in the form of credit exposures and securities;
= loan commitments and guarantee exposures.

In accordance with IFRS 9 impairment is measured as 12-month expected credit losses or perpetual expected credit
losses. The time horizon of an expected loss depends on whether a significant increase in credit risk occurred since
the moment of initial recognition. Therefore, financial assets are allocated to 4 stages.

IFRS 9 portfolio Period of expected credit
losses

Stage 1 (assets whose credit risk has not increased materially since initial 12-month expected credit

recognition) losses

Stage 2 (assets whose credit risk has increased materially since initial recognition)

lifetime expected credit

Stage 3 (impaired assets) losses

Stage 4 (purchased or originated impaired assets - POCI)

The expected loss is calculated as the product of credit risk parameters: probability of default (PD), loss given default
(LGD) and exposure at default (EAD). These parameters are estimated using the risk models applied by the PKO Bank
Polski Group, tailored to the specific characteristics of the operations and the risk profile of PKO Bank Hipoteczny and
approved by the competent governing bodies of the Bank.

With regard to exposures classified in Stage 1, the Bank will use a maximum 12-month horizon of estimation of the
expected loss, unless the maturity is shorter than 12 months. With Stage 2 exposures, the expected loss will be
estimated in the time horizon until maturity. In either case, the expected loss will be the sum total of the losses
expected in the individual periods, discounted by the effective interest rate.

To assess the materiality of growth in the risk of mortgage exposures the Bank uses a model based on marginal PD,
i.e. probability of default in a given month, calculated as of the moment of the initial recognition of the loan. This
allows reflecting the differentiation of the loan quality characteristic for retail customers over the lifetime of the
exposure. The Bank identifies material risk increases based on the comparison of probability of default curves over
the lifetime of exposure on initial recognition and on a given reporting date. For each reporting date, only those parts
of the initial and current PD curve are compared which correspond to the period from the reporting date to the
maturity of the loan. The comparison is based on average PD probability values in the given period adjusted for
current and forecast macroeconomic ratios.

Additionally, to assess the materiality of credit risk increases the Bank uses full quantitative and qualitative
information, including information on:

= payment delinquencies exceeding 30 days;

=  forbearance measures due to the borrower’s financial distress;

= a borrower submitting a motion to a court to declare consumer bankruptcy.
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Stage 2 also includes exposures for which an impairment trigger ceased to exist in the last 3 months.

Impairment premises of credit exposures comprise in particular:

= delays in repayment of a material amount of principal or interest exceeding 90 days;

=  conclusion of a restructuring agreement or applying a relief in repayment of the debt for economic or legal
reasons resulting from the customer’s financial distress (until the debt is considered recoverable);

=  the Bank giving notice and requesting immediate repayment of the loan;

= a court declaring consumer bankruptcy of a customer;

=  so-called contamination of the loans, i.e. situations whereby impairment recognized on a loan exposure
implicates the necessity of its recognition in all loan exposures in respect of housing loans of the relevant co-
debtors - this premise requires checking both the Bank’s and PKO Bank Polski SA’s exposures.

In order to determine the value of assets at the time of default, the Bank determines the exposure at default
parameter on the basis of future payments according to the repayment schedule and potential over- or
underpayments.

In calculating the value of the ultimate expected loss, the Bank also considers the impact of macroeconomic
scenarios on the respective parameters (PD, LGD). The methodology of calculation of the risk parameters includes
back-testing of the dependence of the value of the parameters on macroeconomic conditions. Three macroeconomic
scenarios developed on the basis of the PKO Bank Polski Group forecasts are used for the purpose of calculating
expected loss (as in the identification of an indication of a material increase in credit risk) - a baseline scenario and
two alternative scenarios. The scope of projected indicators include: the GDP growth rate, the unemployment rate, the
3M WIBOR rate, the property price index, and the NBP reference rate. The final expected loss is the average of
expected losses in each scenario, weighted by the probability of the scenarios.

The Bank applies the low credit risk criterion in accordance with IFRS 9, which allows exposures considered low credit

risk exposures to remain in Stage 1 irrespective of the scale of a relative deterioration in the credit quality since initial

recognition. In accordance with IFRS 9, credit risk of a financial instrument is considered low when:

= the financial instrument has a low risk of default;

= the borrower has a strong capacity to meet its contractual cash flow obligations in the near term;

= adverse changes in economic and business conditions in the longer term may, but will not necessarily, reduce
the ability of the borrower to fulfil its contractual cash flow obligations.

The Bank applies the low credit risk criterion to exposures to banks and exposures to the State Treasury and the

National Bank of Poland.

Assessments of materiality of a credit risk increase and calculation of expected losses are both performed monthly in
a dedicated computing environment.

In 2018, the Bank made one modification to the impairment measurement model by updating the threshold of PD
below which the Bank does not identify indications of a material increase in credit risk. At present, the threshold is
0.3% in the 12-monthly horizon.

4.3 HEDGE ACCOUNTING

IFRS 9 increases the range of items that may be identified as hedged items, and also permits designating financial
assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss as hedging instruments. It waives the requirement for
retrospective measurement of hedge effectiveness as well as the previously existing limit of 80% - 125% (application
of hedge accounting becomes conditional on the economic interdependence between the hedging instrument and the
hedged item). In addition, the scope of required disclosures regarding the risk management strategy, cash flows
arising from hedging transactions and the impact of hedge accounting on the financial statements was increased.

Due to the fact that the International Accounting Standards Board is still working on the standard with respect to
portfolio-based hedge accounting (macro hedges), entities have a choice of applying hedge accounting provisions:
they may either continue to apply IAS 39 or apply the new IFRS 9 standard with the exception of fair value macro
hedges relating to interest rate risk.

The Bank chose to continue to follow the provisions of IAS 39 with regard to hedge accounting.
4.4 DISCLOSURES AND COMPARATIVE DATA

In the Bank’s opinion, the application of IFRS 9 requires a change in the presentation and the scope of disclosures
concerning the area of financial instruments, including in the first year of application, when information about the
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opening balance and the restatements made is required. The Bank availed itself of the provisions of IFRS 9 concerning
exemption from the restatement of comparable data for earlier periods with regard to the changes resulting from
classification, measurement and impairment. Differences in the carrying amounts of financial assets and financial
liabilities resulting from the application of IFRS 9 were recognized as part of the retained earnings in equity as at
1 January 2018.

4.5 RECONCILIATION OF THE ITEMS OF THE STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITIONS BETWEEN |IAS 39 AND
IFRS 9 AS AT 1 JANUARY 2018

Closing balance Opening
as at Classification  Measurement |balance as at
31.12.2017 change change 01.01.2018
under IAS 39 under IFRS 9
ASSETS
Cash and balances with the Central Bank 561 - - 561
Amounts due from banks 5,350 - - 5,350
measured at amortized cost 5,350 - - 5,350
Derivative hedging instruments 338 - - 338
Securities 830,489 - - 830,489
available for sale 830,489 (830,489) -
:::sg;uered at fair value through other comprehensive 830,489 i 830,489
Loans and advances to customers at amortized cost 16,042,473 - (14,498) 16,027,975
Intangible assets 5,584 - - 5,584
Property, plant and equipment 570 - - 570
Other assets 17,229 - - 17,229
TOTAL ASSETS 16,902,594 - (14,498) 16,888,096
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Liabilities
Amounts due to banks 4,125,379 - - 4,125,379
Derivative hedging instruments 297,777 - - 217,777
Amounts due to customers 2,099 - - 2,099
Mortgage covered bonds issued 8,883,213 - - 8,883,213
Unsecured bonds issued 2,428,025 - - 2,428,025
Other liabilities 17,441 - - 17,441
Current income tax liabilities 3,507 - - 3,507
Deferred income tax provision 3,237 - (2,765) 472
Provisions 138 - 54 192
TOTAL LIABILITIES 15,680,816 - (2,711) 15,678,105
Equity
Share capital 1,200,000 - - 1,200,000
Accumulated other comprehensive income (28,892) - - (28,892)
Retained earnings (749) - (11,787) (12,536)
Net profit for the period 51,419 - - 51,419
TOTAL EQUITY 1,221,778 - (11,787) 1,209,991
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 16,902,594 - (14,498) 16,888,096

The total impact of the implementation of IFRS 9 resulting from the change in the measurement of loans and
advances to customers of PLN 14,498 thousand and an increase in provisions for expected losses on contingent loan
commitments of PLN 54 thousand less the effect of deferred tax consisting of a decrease in the net deferred tax
provision of PLN 2,765 thousand was recognized in retained earnings as at 1 January 2018.
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4.6 CLASSIFICATION OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES ACCORDING TO IFRS 9 ON FIRST APPLICATION

The impact of the implementation of IFRS 9 on the classification and measurement of financial assets as at 1 January 2018 is presented below.

Financial assets

Cash and balances with the Central Bank
Amounts due from banks

Derivative hedging instruments
Securities

Loans and advances to customers

Securities

Other (financial) assets

Total financial assets

Classification under IAS 39

loans and receivables

loans and receivables

measured at fair value

through profit or loss
measured at fair value

through profit or loss?

loans and receivables
available for sale

loans and receivables

Carrying amount
under IAS 39
as at 31.12.2017

New classification under
IFRS 9

measured at amortized

cost

measured at amortized
cost

measured at fair value
through profit or loss
measured at fair value
through OCI

measured at amortized
cost

measured at fair value

through other

comprehensive income
measured at amortized

cost

561
5,350

338

16,042,473

830,489

99

16,879,310

remeasurement”

(14,498)

New carrying
amount

under IFRS 9

as at 01.01.2018

561
5,350

338

16,027,975

830,489

99

16,864,812

impact of changes in accounting
policies

on other
comprehensive
income

on retained
earnings

(14,498) -

(14,498) -

! Measurement change due to an increase in the gross carrying amount of PLN 141 thousand and an increase in impairment losses of PLN 14,639 thousand.
D Asat 1 January 2018 the Bank did not have any securities measured at fair value through profit or loss.

The value of the financial liability items presented in the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2017 did not change as a result of the implementation of

[FRS 9.
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4.7 DISCLOSURES CONCERNING THE RECONCILIATION OF THE BALANCE OF IMPAIRMENT LOSSES AND
PROVISIONS FOR CONTINGENT LIABILITIES ACCORDING TO IAS 39 AND IAS 37 AND THE OPENING
BALANCE OF THE IMPAIRMENT LOSSES AND PROVISIONS CALCULATED ACCORDING TO IFRS 9

The following table presents the reconciliation of the closing balance of impairment losses according to IAS 39 and
provisions for contingent liabilities according to IAS 37 at 31 December 2017 to the opening balance of the expected
credit losses determined according to IFRS 9 at 1 January 2018.

Classification Classification As at 31.12.2017 As at 01.01.2018
under IAS 39 under IFRS 9 (IAS 39) (IFRS 9)
Loans and advances .
Impairment allowances 5,068 19,707
to customers
Stage 1 3,776
Stage 2 14,963
Stage 3 968
POCI -

Loan commitments  provisions for loan

commitments granted >4 108
Stage 1 69
Stage 2 39
Stage 3 -
POCI -

4.8 QUANTIFICATION OF THE IMPACT OF IFRS 9 ON OWN FUNDS

The increase in impairment losses and provisions for financial commitments following the implementation of IFRS 9 at
initial recognition were recognized in Common Equity Tier 1 (CET1) capital; the Bank chose to apply transitory
solutions concerning the alleviation of the impact of the implementation of IFRS 9, which are specified in Requlation
No. 2017/2395 of the European Parliament and the Council (UE) of 12 December 2017. Therefore, the impact on the
Common Equity Tier 1 and on the Total Capital Ratio of the Bank was negligible, as it remained at 15.2% as at
1 January 2018. In connection with the above, the impact of the above on the Bank’s Tier 1 capital and the total
capital ratio, which remained at 15.2% as at 1 January 2018, was negligible. If transitional solutions were not applied,
the common equity Tier 1 capital ratio, Tier 1 capital ratio and the total capital requirement would amount to 15.1%.

As at 31 December 2018, the Bank’s own funds, common equity Tier 1 capital and Tier 1 capital, excluding the above
transitional solutions, would amount to PLN 1,380,045 thousand, common equity Tier 1 capital, Tier 1 capital and total
capital requirement would amount to 15.0%, and the leverage ratio would amount to 6.2%. After taking into account
the transitional solutions, the Bank’s own funds as at 31 December 2018 would amount to PLN 1,393,846 thousand,
common equity Tier 1 capital, Tier 1 capital and total capital requirement would amount to 15.2%, and the leverage
ratio would amount to 6.3%.

5. OTHER CHANGES TO ACCOUNTING POLICIES

5.1 AMENDMENTS TO THE PUBLISHED STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS WHICH BECAME BINDING AS OF
1 JANUARY 2018

The implementation of new standards and interpretations which became binding in 2018, apart from IFRS 9, as
described in subpar. 4, did not have a material impact on these financial statements.

IFRS 15 “REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS”

IFRS 15 was adopted for use in all the Member States of the European Union on 22 September 2016 and applies to
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018.

IFRS 15 refers to fee and commission income and other fees generated by financial institutions, related - among other
things - to servicing loans, asset management or fiduciary activities, which are not covered by IFRS 9.

Pursuant to this standard the Bank recognizes revenue in such a manner so as to reflect the transfer of the goods or
services promised to a customer in an amount reflecting the consideration to which - in accordance with the entity’s
expectations - it will be entitled in return for the goods or services. The Bank applies this Standard in consideration of
the terms and conditions of the contracts, and all material facts and circumstances.
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The Bank has not identified contracts in respect of which the implementation of IFRS 15 would materially impact the
financial statements.

5.2 NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS, AND AMENDMENTS THERETO, WHICH HAVE BEEN PUBLISHED AND
HAVE BEEN APPROVED BY THE EUROPEAN UNION, BUT ARE NOT YET BINDING AND HAVE NOT BEEN APPLIED BY
THE BANK

Several new standards and amendments to standards and interpretations have not yet become binding for the annual
periods ending on 1 January 2018 and these have not been applied to these financial statements. From among the
new standards and interpretations those referred to below will have an impact on the annual financial statements. The
Bank intends to apply them for the periods for which they will be applicable for the first time, without taking
advantage of an early application option.

IFRS 16“LEASES”

The standard was published by the International Accounting Standards Board on 13 January 2016 and has been
endorsed by the European Union. IFRS 16 is binding for the annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019. The
new standard will replace the currently binding IAS 17 Leases. which is effective until the end of 2018, and
Interpretation of the International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (“IFRIC”) no. 4 and Interpretations of
the Standing Interpretations Committee (“SIC”) no. 15 and 27.

The new standard introduces one model for accounting for leases in the lessee’s accounts, consistent with the
accounting for financial leases under IAS 17. In accordance with IFRS 16, a contract is, or contains, a lease if the
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

The key difference between the definitions of a lease in IAS 17 and IFRS 16 is the requirement of control over the use
of a specific asset being used, identified in an agreement expressly or implied. A transfer of right of use takes place
where we have an identified asset from which a lessee has the right to practically all economic benefits, and where
the lessee has control over the use of the asset in a given period.

If the definition of a lease is met, a right-of-use asset is recognized together with a corresponding lease liability
determined in the amount of discounted future payments over the lease period, except for short-term lease contracts
up to 12 months and lease agreements relating to assets immaterial in terms of their amounts.

Expenses relating to the use of leased assets which were previously charged to overheads shall now be classified as
amortization cost and interest expense.

Right-of-use assets are amortized on a straight line basis, while lease liabilities are accounted for using the effective
interest rate.

IMPACT OF IFRS 16 ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
In the fourth quarter of 2018, the Bank finished the IFRS 16 implementation project.

Analyses were conducted of all operating lease, rent and hire agreements. In addition, agreements for the purchase of
services (external services costs incurred as part of operating activities) were analysed for the existence of a right of
use of an identified asset.

As part of the project, the Bank amended its accounting policies and operational procedures as appropriate.
Methodologies were developed and implemented for the correct identification of agreements which represent leases
and for collecting the data necessary to accurately account for such transactions. Moreover, the Bank implemented
the necessary changes in its IT systems to enable them to collect and process the relevant data.

The Bank decided to adopt the standard as of 1 January 2019. In accordance with transitional provisions of IFRS 16,
the new policies will be adopted retrospectively, with the cumulative effect of the initial application of the new
standard being recognized in equity as at 1 January 2019. Consequently, the comparative data for the reporting year
2018 will not be restated (modified retrospective approach).

Specific adjustments resulting from the implementation of IFRS 16 are described below.
RECOGNITION OF LEASE LIABILITIES

Upon adoption of IFRS 16, the Bank will recognize lease liabilities on agreements previously classified as operating
leases in accordance with IAS 17. Such liabilities have been measured at the present value of the remaining lease
payments at the date of initial application of IFRS 16, discounted using the interest rate as at 1 January 2019
calculated based on the Bank’s incremental borrowing rate.
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As at the date of initial recognition, lease payments taken into account in the measurement of the lease liability
include the following types of payments for the right to use the underlying asset over the lease period:

= fixed lease payments less any lease incentives due;

= variable lease payments that depend on market indices;

= amounts expected to be paid in respect of the guaranteed residual value of a leased asset;

=  the exercise price of a purchase option if it may be reasonably assumed to be exercised;

= payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lessee is able to exercise an option to terminate the lease.

In order to calculate discount rates for the purposes of IFRS 16, the Bank assumed that the discount rate should
reflect the cost of financing which would have been incurred to purchase the leased asset. In order to estimate the
discount rate, the Bank took into account the following parameters: the lease period and contractual currency, and
the profitability of own debt securities issued by the Bank.

At 1 January 2019, the discount rates calculated by the Bank ranged from 2.07% to 4.21% (depending on the length
of the lease period). All lease agreements concluded by the Bank are in PLN.

The Bank applied simplifications relating to short-term leases (below 12 months) and to agreements where the
underlying asset is of low value (below PLN 20 thousand), and did not recognize financial liabilities and right-of-use
assets for such leases. Lease payments are charged to costs on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

RECOGNITION OF THE RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost and presented in the statement of financial position together with assets
owned by the Bank, including presentation of additional information in notes to the financial statements.

The cost of the right-of-use asset includes:

= the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability;

= any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, less any lease incentives received;

= any initial direct costs incurred by the lessee in connection with concluding the lease agreement;

= an estimate of costs to be incurred by the lessee in dismantling and removing the underlying asset or restoring
the underlying asset.

APPLICATION OF ESTIMATES

The implementation of IFRS 16 required certain estimates and calculations which affect the measurement of the
finance lease liabilities and right-of-use assets. They include, among others:

=  identifying agreements covered by IFRS 16;

= identifying the lease term (including for agreements with an unspecified term or with an extension option);
= determining the interest rate to be applied for discounting future cash flows;

=  determining depreciation rates.

APPLICATION OF PRACTICAL EXPEDIENTS
Upon first-time application of IFRS 16, the Bank applied the following practical expedients permitted by the standard:

= applying a single discounting rate to a portfolio of lease agreements with similar characteristics;
=  operating lease agreements with a remaining lease term shorter than 12 months as at 1 January 2019 were
treated as short-term leases.

IMPACT ON THE STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

The impact of IFRS 16 on the recognition of additional financial liabilities and right-of-use assets is presented in the
table below:

As at 31.12.2018 Effect of IFRS 16 [As at 01.01.2019
IMPACT ON THE STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (IAS 17) implementation  |(IFRS 16)
ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment, of which: 449 5427 5,876
right-of-use asset 5427 5,427
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Other liabilities, of which: 121974 5,427 127,401
lease liabilities 5,427 5,427
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Reconciliation of the difference between amounts of future lease payments under irrevocable operating leases
disclosed in accordance with IAS 17 as at the end of 2018 and the lease liabilities recognized as at 1 January 2019,
i.e. as at the date of the first application of IFRS 16 is presented below:

OPERATING LEASE LIABILITIES

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2018 (NOT DISCOUNTED) 5291
Exclusion of short-term lease agreements -
Exclusion of lease agreements for low value assets -
Agreements whose assessment changed and are treated as service contracts (56)

since 1 January 2019
Impact of discount (486)
Adjusted for the difference in the recognition of the extension/termination option, 672
including notice period
LEASE LIABILITIES

AS AT 1 JANUARY 2019 >4
IMPACT ON EQUITY

Implementation of IFRS 16 has no impact on retained earnings and equity as at 1 January 2019 due to the fact that
the right-of-use assets and lease liabilities were recognized in the same amounts.

IMPACT ON THE INCOME STATEMENT

Starting from 1 January 2019, there will be a change in the presentation of costs (rent will be replaced by
depreciation and interest expense) and the timing of their recognition (costs relating to leases will be recognized
faster due to the fact that interest expense will be recognized using the effective interest method which has not been
applied previously).

IMPACT ON FINANCIAL RATIOS

Given the amount of the right-of-use assets and lease liabilities recognized as at 1 January 2019, it is estimated that
the implementation of IFRS 16 will have a negligible impact on the financial ratios.

NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS, AND AMENDMENTS THERETO, WHICH HAVE BEEN PUBLISHED BUT HAVE NOT
BEEN APPROVED BY THE EUROPEAN UNION

Amendments to IFRS 3, IFRS 9, IFRS 10, IAS 1, IAS 28 and IAS 19, improvements to IFRS 2015-2017 and
implementation of IFRS 17 and IFRIC 23 will not have a material impact on the Bank’s financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE INCOME STATEMENT

6. INTEREST INCOME AND EXPENSE

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Interest income and expense includes interest, including premium and discount on financial instruments measured at
amortized cost and instruments measured at fair value. Interest income and expense is recognized on the accruals

basis and using the effective interest rate method.

Interest income and expense also includes fees and commission accrued using the effective interest rate method,

accrued or paid, included in the measurement of a financial instrument.

INCOME AND EXPENSE ON THE SALE OF INSURANCE PRODUCTS LINKED TO LOANS AND ADVANCES

The Bank is not offering insurance products linked to loans and advances.

FINANCIAL INFORMATION

@
ﬁ Bank Hipoteczny

01.01.2018 - 01.01.2017 -
INTEREST INCOME 31.12.2018 31.12.2017
Interest income calculated under the effective interest rate method, including: 666,411 409,657
on financial instruments measured at amortized cost, including: 650,264 399,599
loans and advances to customers 650,216 399,457
amounts due from banks and on mandatory reserve 48 142
on ms.truments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income, 16,147 10,058
including:
debt securities 16,147 10,058
Income similar to interest income on instruments measured at fair value through
. . 1,184 837
profit or loss, including:
debt securities - 360
hedging IRS transactions (net) 1,184 477
Total 667,595 410,494
including: interest income on impaired financial instruments 248 52
01.01.2018 - 01.01.2017 -
INTEREST EXPENSE 31.12.2018 31.12.2017
Interest income on financial instruments measured at amortized cost, including: (268,615) (173,231)
loans received and overdraft facility used (34,627) (27,802)
deferred payment for acquisition of receivables (52,370) (40,471)
mortgage covered bonds issued (122,061) (65,129)
unsecured bonds issued (59,557) (39,829)
!ntergst expense on instruments measured at fair value through profit or loss, (149,494) (86,026)
including:
on hedging CIRS transactions (net) (149,494) (86,026)
Total (418,109) (259,257)

7. FEE AND COMMISSION INCOME AND EXPENSE

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Fee and commission income is generally recognized on an accruals basis when the service has been provided.

Commission income includes one-off fees collected by the Bank for performing tasks not directly related to
origination of loans, advances and other receivables.

Commission expense includes fees and commission accrued on a straight-line basis, paid in connection with the
financing obtained by the Bank where the timing of the future cash flows is unspecified, for which the effective
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interest rate cannot be determined, and relating to issue programmes, as well as costs incurred by the Bank in

connection with preparation by property valuers of appraisal reports on Property Value for Mortgage Lending
Purposes (BHWN).

FINANCIAL INFORMATION

01.01.2018 - 01.01.2017 -

FEE AND COMMISSION INCOME 3112.2018 3112.2017

Fees for property valuation 6,166 5,063
Fees for property inspection 2,634 2,066
Fees for full or partial early repayment of loans 4,676 3,127
Other 1,293 811
Total 14,769 11,067

01.01.2018 - 01.01.2017 -

FEE AND COMMISSION EXPENSE 3112.2018 3112.2017

Preparation by property valuers of appraisal reports on Property Value for Mortgage

Lending Purposes (BHWN) (8,981) (7.642)
Expenses related to unsecured bonds issuance programme (3,542) (2,632)
Expenses related to credit lines (2,614) (2,889)
Expenses related to mortgage covered bonds issuance programme (1,164) (982)
Loan insurance costs (2,999) (1,321)
Commission on other operating services (225) (145)
Costs of debt collection and intermediation in selling collateral (29) (12)
Total (19,554) (15,623)

8. NET RESULT ON FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS MEASURED AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND CLASSIFICATION

Net result on financial instruments measured at fair value through profit or loss includes gains and losses arising on
disposal of financial instruments classified as financial assets/liabilities measured at fair value through profit or loss
(both those held for trading and designated as measured at fair value through profit or loss at initial recognition), and
the effects of their remeasurement to the fair value.

The item also includes an ineffective part of cash flow hedges for hedging strategies where Interest Rate Swap (IRS)
contracts are hedging instruments.

FINANCIAL INFORMATION

NET RESULT ON FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AT FAIR VALUE 01.01.2018 - 01.01.2017 -
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS 31.12.2018 31.12.2017
Gain/(loss) on derivatives 89 (264)
Gain/(loss) on IRS derivative instruments before designation to hedge accounting 26 (240)
Gain/(loss) on IRS derivative instruments related to hedge ineffectiveness 63 (24)
Gain/(loss) on debt instruments - (1)
Total 89 (265)

The Bank concludes and maintains IRS derivative instruments solely for hedging purposes.
9. NET FOREIGN EXCHANGE GAINS/(LOSSES)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND CLASSIFICATION

Net foreign exchange gains/(losses) include foreign exchange gains and losses, both realized and unrealized, on
measurement of foreign currency assets and liabilities at average exchange rates announced by the National Bank of
Poland applicable as at the end of the reporting period, and on fair value measurement of derivative instruments, i.e.
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Cross Currency Interest Rate Swaps (CIRS) and Foreign Exchange Forwards (FX-Forward), including the ineffective
part of cash flow hedges for hedging strategies where CIRS and FX Forwards contracts are hedging instruments.

FINANCIAL INFORMATION

01.01.2018 - 01.01.2017 -

NET FOREIGN EXCHANGE GAINS/(LOSSES) 31122018 31122017
Result on revaluation (173) 294
Gain/(loss) on derivative instruments (CIRS, FX-Forward) before designation to hedge

accounting (1375) 5,767
Gain/(loss) on derivative instruments (CIRS, FX-Forward) related to hedge 310 070
ineffectiveness 131 (5,070)
Total (238) 991

The Bank concludes and maintains CIRS and FX Forward derivative instruments solely for hedging purposes.

10. GAINS/(LOSSES) ON DERECOGNITION OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES NOT
MEASURED AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

ACCOUNTING POLICIES AS OF 1 JANUARY 2018

Gains or losses on derecognition of financial instruments not measured at fair value through profit or loss (including
on sale or material modification) is presented broken down by accounting portfolios:

= measured at fair value through other comprehensive income;

= measured at amortized cost.

FINANCIAL INFORMATION

In 2018 the net result on derecognition of financial assets and liabilities not measured at fair value through profit or
loss was PLN 0.

11. NET RESULT ON MODIFICATION

ACCOUNTING POLICIES AS OF 1 JANUARY 2018

The net result on the modification of financial assets is presented broken down by financial instruments:

= measured at amortized cost;

= measured at fair value through other comprehensive income;

= measured at fair value through profit or loss.

Issues related to modifications have been described in Note 4 “IFRS 9 Financial instruments”. In the item “Net result

on modification” the net result on immaterial modification is presented, whereas the net result on material

modification is presented under “Net result on derecognition of financial instruments not measured at fair value
through profit or loss”.

FINANCIAL INFORMATION

01.01.2018 - 01.01.2017 -
NET RESULT ON MODIFICATION 31.12.2018 3112.2017
Financial instruments measured at amortized cost (439)
Total (439)
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01.01.2018 - 01.01.2017 -
FINANCIAL ASSETS SUBJECT TO MODIFICATION 31122018 3112.2017
Carrying amount at amortized cost before modification (Stage 2) 1,761
Gain/(loss) recognized on modification 5
Carrying amount at amortized cost before modification (Stage 3) 469
Gain/(loss) recognized on modification (2)

The gross value of financial assets for which lifetime expected losses were calculated and which had been modified
after 1 January 2018 and were classified to Stage 1 after modification amounted to PLN 1,606 thousand as at

31 December 2018.
12. NET CREDIT LOSSES

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Accounting policies for recognizing net credit losses have been described for specific items in Notes 4.2, 23 and 34.2,
as appropriate. Net credit losses comprise allowances for loans and advances to customers and provisions for loan

commitments granted recognized and released.

FINANCIAL INFORMATION

01.01.2018 - 01.01.2017 -
NET CREDIT LOSSES Note 131122018 [31.12.2017
Net allowances on loans and advances to customers 23,24 (8,667) (3,309)
Net provisions for loan commitments 23,24 (36) 26
Total (8,703) (3,283)

13. OTHER OPERATING INCOME AND EXPENSES

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Other operating income and expenses include income and expenses not directly associated with banking activities.

FINANCIAL INFORMATION

01.01.2018 - 01.01.2017 -
OTHER OPERATING INCOME 31.12.2018 31122017
Sundry income 606 1,308
Other 7 5
Total 613 1,313

01.01.2018 - 01.01.2017 -
OTHER OPERATING EXPENSE 31.12.2018 31122017
Sundry expenses (517) (1,250)
Other (42) (46)
Total (559) (1,296)

Sundry expenses for 2018 include PLN 403 thousand relating to inspection reports provided by property valuers in
respect of properties for which the receivables could not have been purchased by PKO Bank Hipoteczny SA. In
accordance with terms and conditions of the receivable purchase agreements, these costs are borne to PKO Bank
Polski SA and, consequently, were re-invoiced and presented as sundry income. In 2017, they amounted to
PLN 1,150 thousand.
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14. ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS  Employee benefits include costs of salaries and wages and social insurance (including
contributions to pension and disability benefits, described in detail in Note 32 “Provisions”).

In addition, the Bank recognizes a provision for future liabilities in respect of severance pay for
employees whose employment contracts will be terminated, charged to costs of salaries and
wages, and accrued costs attributable to the current period, to be paid in future periods,
including bonuses and holiday pay, taking into account all outstanding unused holiday.

Employee benefits also include a variable remuneration plan for the top management, which is
recognized in part as a liability in respect payments based on the book value of shares, settled
in cash. The variable remuneration plan is described in Note 38.4 “The principles for
determining the variable remuneration components policy for key management personnel in
the Bank”.

OVERHEADS These include, among others: costs of services relating to supporting tasks and the costs of
servicing loans under the Outsourcing Agreement (described in Note 38.1 “Transactions with
entities related in terms of capital”), costs of external services resulting from other agreements,
costs of renting properties and IT costs.

Lease payments made under operating leases and subsequent lease instalments are charged
to the income statement on a straight line basis over the period of the lease.

DEPRECIATION AND  pepreciation and amortization policies are described in details in Note 25 “Intangible assets
AMORTIZATION and property, plant and equipment”.

TAXES AND These include, among others, the following items: tax on civil law transactions, payments to the
CHARGES Bank Guarantee Fund (BGF) and to the Polish Financial Supervision Authority (PFSA).

FINANCIAL INFORMATION

01.01.2018 - 01.01.2017 -

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES 31.12.2018 31122017

Employee benefits (16,698) (16,063)
Overheads (26,741) (20,622)
Amortization and depreciation, including: (2,177) (1,487)
property, plant and equipment (252) (271)
intangible assets (1,925) (1,216)
Taxes and fees, including: (6,868) (2,875)
Tax on civil law transactions (due to share capital increase) (500) (2,000)
Contribution to the BGF Resolution Fund (4,556) (31)
Payments to the PFSA (1,524) (583)
Total (52,484) (41,047)

01.01.2018 - 01.01.2017 -

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 31122018 [31.12.2017

Wages and salaries, of which: (141771) (13,748)

provision for disability and retirement benefits (53) (24)
Salary surcharges (1,657) (1,690)
Other employee benefits (870) (625)
Total (16,698) (16,063)
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01.01.2018 - 01.01.2017 -
OVERHEADS 31.12.2018 31.12.2017
Services r.elating to supe;)rting operations under (3192) (2812)
Outsourcing Agreement
Servicing.of loans grantid and receivables purchased under (15.939) (10,644)
Outsourcing Agreement
External services under other contracts (2,623) (2,037)
IT costs (1,534) (1,537)
Rents and service charges (2,083) (1,943)
Car leases (274) (246)
Other (1,096) (1,403)
Total (26,741) (20,622)

Y The Outsourcing Agreement is described in Note 38.1 “Transactions with entities related in terms of capital”

15.TAX ON CERTAIN FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

On 1 February 2016, the Act on tax on certain financial institutions of 15 January 2016 came into force. For banks,
the tax base is calculated as the surplus of total assets over PLN 4 billion as per the trial balance as at the end of
each month. Banks are entitled to reduce the tax base by deducting, among other things, own funds and the value of
Treasury securities held. The tax rate is 0.0366% per month and the tax is paid monthly by the 25th day of the month
following the month to which the tax relates. The tax paid is not tax deductible for the purposes of corporate income
tax. Tax on certain financial institutions amounted to PLN 60,765 thousand for 2018 and PLN 31,699 thousand for

2017.

16. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

RECOGNITION

CURRENT  INCOME

TAX EXPENSE

DEFERRED INCOME

TAX

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Current income tax expense is
recognized in the income statement. Deferred tax is recognized in the income statement or
other comprehensive income, depending on the source of the timing differences.

Current income tax is calculated based on profit before tax determined in accordance with the
accounting regulations, adjusted by income which is not taxable under the tax regulations,
taxable income not recognized as income for accounting purposes, non-deductible costs and
tax costs not recognized as costs for accounting purposes, in accordance with the relevant
provisions of the tax law. These include, among other things, interest income and expense
accrued to be received or paid, allowances for credit losses, provisions for liabilities, the cost of
tax on certain financial institutions or payments to the BGF.

Deferred income tax is recognized as the difference between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts. A change in the deferred tax provision and asset is
charged to the profit or loss, with the exception of the effects of revaluation of financial assets
measured at fair value through other comprehensive income and the valuation of the hedging
instruments recognized in other comprehensive income, where the changes in the balance of
the deferred tax provision and asset are also recognized in other comprehensive income. When
determining the deferred income tax, the amounts of the deferred tax provision and asset as at
the beginning and end of the reporting period are taken into account.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed as at each reporting date and is
decreased to the extent it has become less probable that a taxable profit will be generated in
an amount sufficient for the deferred tax asset to be partially or fully realized.

Deferred income tax assets and provisions are measured using the tax rates, which are
expected to apply in the period in which the asset is realized or the provision released,
determined on the basis of tax rates (and tax regulations) enacted or substantively enacted as
at the end of the reporting period, or the rates which are certain to apply in the future.

The Bank offsets the deferred tax asset against the deferred tax provision solely when it has a
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legally enforceable title for an offset of the current income tax receivables and liabilities, and if
the deferred income asset and provision relate to income taxes imposed by the same tax

authorities on the same taxpayer.

FINANCIAL INFORMATION

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Current income tax expense

Deferred income tax due to temporary differences

Income tax reported in the income statement

Income tax reported in other comprehensive income due to temporary differences

Total

RECONCILIATION OF THE EFFECTIVE TAX RATE

Profit / (loss) before income tax
Corporate income tax calculated at the statutory tax rate in force in Poland (19%)
Effect of non-deductible differences and between profit before income tax and taxable
income, of which:

tax on certain financial institutions

fees to the BGF

costs exceeding the limit set in Article 15e of the CIT Act

Tax on civil law transactions relating to share capital increase

PFRON (State Disabled Persons Fund) costs

impact of other permanent differences
Effect of other timing differences between profit before income tax and taxable
income, including new technologies tax relief

Income tax expense reported in the income statement

Effective tax rate

Temporary difference resulting from deferred tax reported
in the income statement

Total current Income tax expense reported in the income statement

CURRENT INCOME TAX LIABILITIES

Current income tax liabilities

Current income tax liabilities were paid within the statutory deadline.

01.01.2018 -
31.12.2018

(33,299)

(3,067)
(36,366)
(21,764)

(58,130)

01.01.2018 -
31.12.2018

122,215
(23,221)

(13,145)

(11,545
(866
(607

(95
(16
(16

o~ o

(36,366)

29.76%

(3,067)
(33,299)

31.12.2018

3,159

01.01.2017 -
31.12.2017

(11,735)
(8,241)
(19,976)
2,564

(17,412)

01.01.2017 -
31.12.2017

71,395
(13,565)
(6,440)
(6,023)

(6)
(380)

—_—— W

80
15)
16)

29

(19,976)

27.98%

(8,241)
(11,735)

31.12.2017

3,507
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NET DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/LIABILITIES

Deferred tax provision

Interest accrued on loans and advances

to customers

Interest accrued and discount on securities
Adjustment of loan portfolio valuation under the
straight-line and effective interest rate methods
Adjustment of own bonds issued valuation under
straight-line and effective interest rate methods
Deferred costs

Difference between carrying amount and tax
value of property, plant and equipment and intangible
assets

Valuation of securities

Valuation of derivatives

Gross deferred income tax provision

Deferred tax asset

Interest accrued on amounts due to banks
Interest accrued and discount on liabilities
in respect of securities issued

Allowances for credit losses

Expenses to be paid

Tax loss

Valuation of securities

Valuation of derivatives

Gross deferred tax asset

Net deferred income tax asset / (provision)
(presented in the statement of financial position)

Tax Group

31.12.2017

5,735
565
13,470

2,205
1,060

10

619
5,623
29,287

2,144
6,280

952
1,637
2,362

38
12,637
26,050

(3,237)

Impact of adjustment
due to IFRS 9
adoption recognized
in retained earnings

27

Income
statement

1,893
162
6,105

3,852
4,921

1,388
2
(2,362)
1,884
9,685

(3,067)

Other
comprehensive
income

419
13,516
13,935

(385
(7,791)
(7,829)

(21,764)

31.12.2018

7,655
7217
19,575

3,586
825

1,038
22,590
56,001

5,996
11,201

5132
1,639

6,730
30,698

(25,303)

Based on the contract dated 5 November 2018 PKO Bank Polski SA, as the parent company, jointly with its two
subsidiaries: PKO Bank Hipoteczny SA and PKO Leasing SA, created the Podatkowa Grupa Kapitatowa Powszechnej
Kasy Oszczednosci Banku Polskiego Spotki Akcyjnej Tax Group (“PGK PKO Banku Polskiego SA”). The contract was
registered by the Head of the Second Mazovian Tax Office in Warsaw. PGK PKO Banku Polskiego SA was established
for three tax years. The first tax year began on 1 January 2019.

A tax group is an institution of the tax law stipulated in the provisions of the Corporate Income Tax Act. Its creation
means that the income of the Tax Group companies will be consolidated for corporate income tax purposes and that
solutions will be available facilitating the application of other, in particular operational, requlations of the Corporate
Income Tax Act, dedicated specifically to Tax Groups.
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17. EARNINGS PER SHARE

METHODOLOGY

BASIC EARNINGS
PER SHARE

DILUTED EARNINGS
PER SHARE

Basic earnings per share are calculated based on the profit attributable to the Bank’s ordinary
shareholders by dividing the profit attributable to then by the weighted average number of
ordinary shares during the period.

Diluted earnings per share are calculated based on the profit attributable to ordinary
shareholders by dividing the profit attributable to them by the weighted average number of
ordinary shares during the period, adjusted for the dilutive effect of .all dilutive potential
ordinary shares.

FINANCIAL INFORMATION

EARNINGS PER SHARE

01.01.2018 - 01.01.2017 -
31.12.2018 31.12.2017

Profit attributable to ordinary shareholders (in PLN thousand) 85,849 51,419
Weighted average number of ordinary shares during the period (in thousand) 1,222,123 967,123
Earnings per share (in PLN per share) 0.07 0.05

In 2018 and 2017 there were no instruments which would dilute the earnings per share. Therefore, the amount of
diluted earnings per share corresponds to the amount of base profit per share.
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NOTES TO THE STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

18. CASH AND BALANCES WITH THE CENTRAL BANK

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

“Cash and balances with the Central Bank” comprise amounts in the current account and deposits with the Central
Bank, measured at amounts due which include any interest on these amounts.

FINANCIAL INFORMATION

CASH AND BALANCES WITH THE CENTRAL BANK 31.12.2018 31.12.2017
Current account with the Central Bank 6 561
Total 6 561
MANDATORY RESERVE

In the period from 31 December 2018 to 30 January 2019 and from 30 November 2017 to 1 January 2018, the Bank
maintained the mandatory reserve of PLN 0 thousand and PLN 670 thousand, respectively. Funds in the mandatory
reserve account bear interest equal to 0.9 of the reference rate. As at 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017,
such interest rate was 1.35%.

During the day, the Bank may use the funds deposited in the mandatory reserve account for current cash settlements
on the basis of an instruction submitted to the National Bank of Poland, but the Bank must ensure that the monthly
average balance is maintained on the account at an appropriate level consistent with the declared mandatory reserve.

19. AMOUNTS DUE FROM BANKS

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Amounts due from banks are financial assets measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method, net
of allowances for expected credit losses. If the timing of future cash flows and, consequently, the effective interest
rate, cannot be determined for a receivable, it is measured at the amount due.

FINANCIAL INFORMATION

AMOUNTS DUE FROM BANKS 31.12.2018 01.01.2018 31.12.2017

Measured at amortized cost
current accounts 22 5,350 5,350

Total 22 5,350 5,350

Information on exposures to credit risk relating to amounts due from banks is provided in Note 42 “Credit risk
management”.

All amounts due from banks were classified to Stage 1 as at 1 January 2018 and 31 December 2018. During the year
ended 31 December 2018, there were no transfers between stages for amounts due from banks.

20. DERIVATIVE HEDGING INSTRUMENTS

ACCOUNTING POLICIES, ESTIMATES AND ASSESSMENTS

THE USE OF HEDGE The Bank decided to further apply the provisions of IAS 39 and did not apply IFRS 9 in respect
ACCOUNTING of hedge accounting.

In its operations, the Bank uses derivative instruments: CIRS, IRS, FX-Forward for hedging
purposes only, in accordance with the risk management strategy described in more detail in
Notes 46 and 47. All derivatives shall be designated for hedge accounting.

The Bank applies hedge accounting when all the terms and conditions below have been met:

Page 34/100



This document is a translation of a document originally issued in Polish.
The only binding version is the original Polish version.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF PKO BANK HIPOTECZNY SA F 1
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 OECEMBER 2018 ““ Bank HIPOteczng

(IN PLN ‘000)

= ypon setting up the hedge, the hedging relationship, the purpose of risk management by
the entity and the hedging strategy were officially established and documented. Such
documentation shall contain identification of the hedging instrument, the hedged item or
transaction, the nature of the hedged risk, and the method used by the entity to assess the
hedging instrument’s effectiveness in compensating the risk of changes in the fair value of
the hedged risk or the cash flows relating to the hedged risk;

= the hedge is expected to be highly effective in compensating the changes in the fair value
or cash flows resulting from the hedged risk, in accordance with the originally documented
risk management strategy relating to this specific hedging relationship;

= in the case of cash flow hedges, the planned hedged transaction must be highly probable
and must be exposed to a risk of variability of cash flows which may, as a result, have an
impact on the income statement;

= the hedge effectiveness can be assessed reliably, i.e. the fair value or cash flows relating to
the hedged item and resulting from the hedged risk and the fair value of the hedging
instrument can be assessed reliably;

= the hedge is regularly assessed and its high effectiveness is confirmed in all the reporting
periods for which the hedge had been designated.

DISCONTINUATION  The Bank discontinues the application of hedge accounting when:

OF HEDGE = a hedging instrument expires, is sold, terminated or executed (replacing a hedging

ACCOUNTING instrument with another hedging instrument or extending the validity of a hedging
instrument is not treated as its expiry or termination, if such replacement or extension is a
part of a documented hedging strategy adopted by the entity). In such cases, accumulated
gains or losses associated with a hedging instrument, which were directly recognized in
other comprehensive income over the period in which the hedge was effective, continue to
be recognized as a separate item of other comprehensive income and credited or charged
to profit or loss over the period in which the hedged item is recognized in profit or loss;

= the hedge no longer meets the criteria of hedge accounting. In such cases, accumulated
gains or losses associated with a hedging instrument, which were directly recognized in
other comprehensive income over the period in which the hedge was effective, continue to
be recognized as a separate item of other comprehensive income and credited or charged
to profit or loss over the period in which the hedged item is recognized in profit or loss;

= the planned transaction is no longer expected to be executed - in such cases, all
accumulated gains or losses relating to the hedging instrument which were recognized
directly in other comprehensive income over the period in which the hedge was effective,
are recognized in profit ot loss;

= the hedging relationship has been invalidated.
FAIR VALUE HEDGES ~ The Bank does not apply fair value hedging.

CASH FLOW HEDGES ~ Cash flow hedges are hedges against cash flow volatility, which may be attributed to a
specific type of risk associated with a recognized asset or liability (such as future payments
of interest on floating-interest debt (or a part thereof)) or a highly probable planned
transaction, and which could affect the income statement.

Changes in the fair value of a derivative financial instrument designated as a cash flow hedge
are recognized directly in other comprehensive income in respect of the portion constituting
the effective portion of the hedge. The ineffective portion of the hedge is recognized in the
income statement in the item “Net income from financial instruments designated at fair value”
or “Foreign exchange gains (losses)”. Moreover, the amounts recognized directly in other
comprehensive income are transferred to the income statement as “Net interest income” or
“Net foreign exchange gain”, respectively, in the period or periods in which the impact of the
hedged transaction is recognized in the income statement.

The effectiveness tests comprise the valuation of hedging transactions, net of interest accrued
and foreign exchange gains (losses) on the nominal value of the hedging transactions (in the
case of CIRS and FX-Forward transactions).

Hedge effectiveness is verified through the use of prospective and retrospective effectiveness
tests. The tests are performed on a monthly basis.
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e The main sources of hedge ineffectiveness may include:
SOURCES OF = applying the CVA/DVA adjustment to the hedging instrument only;

INEFFECTIVENESS = the existence of minute differences in the structure and the basic parameters of hedging
transactions and hedged items.

The monthly tests show continuous high effectiveness of the hedging strategies applied.

The fair value of derivative instruments is determined using valuation models based on
discounted future cash flows from a given financial instrument. The model variables and
assumptions used for valuation purposes comprise, subject to availability, data from
observable markets (e.g. deposit rates on the interbank market, foreign exchange rates, IRS
transaction quotations).

The fair value of derivatives includes the Bank’s own credit risk, DVA (debit value adjustment)
as well as counterparty credit risk, CVA (credit value adjustment). The process of calculation
of CVA and DVA adjustments includes the selection of a method for determining the spread of
the counterparty’s or the Bank’s credit risk (e.g. a market price method based on the
continuous price quotations of debt instruments issued by the counterparty, a method of
spread implied from Credit Default Swap contracts), an estimation of the probability of default
by the counterparty or the Bank and the recovery rate.

ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

TYPES OF HEDGING STRATEGIES USED BY THE BANK

STRATEGY 1 HEDGE OF THE VARIABILITY OF CASH FLOWS GENERATED BY MORTGAGE LOANS IN PLN DUE TO CHANGES
IN THE REFERENCE INTEREST RATES AND BY MORTGAGE COVERED BONDS OENOMINATED IN
A CONVERTIBLE FOREIGN CURRENCY DUE TO CHANGES IN THE EXCHANGE RATE, USING CIRS AND FX-
FORWARD HEDGING INSTRUMENTS

OUTLINE OF THE Elimination of the variability of cash flows generated by mortgage loans in PLN due to
HEDGING changes in the reference interest rates and by mortgage covered bonds denominated in
TRANSACTION a convertible foreign currency due to changes in the exchange rate, using CIRS hedging

instruments and a series of FX-Forward transactions in the foreign currency serving as
hedges of the FX exposures maturing on the dates of payment of coupons on the mortgage
covered bonds in the foreign currency.

HEDGED RISK Forex and interest rate risks.
HEDGING = Cross-Currency Interest Rate Swap (CIRS) transactions in which the Bank pays a coupon
INSTRUMENTS based on a variable PLN rate and receives a coupon based on a fixed rate for the

convertible currency. If PKO Bank Hipoteczny SA is declared bankrupt by the court, the
CIRS transactions will automatically be extended by 12 months on the terms and
conditions set on the transaction date;

= an optional series of FX-Forward transactions in the convertible foreign currency serving
as hedges of the FX exposures maturing on the dates of payment of coupons on the
mortgage covered bonds in the foreign currency.

HEDGED ITEM = part of the portfolio of the home loans included in the cover pool of PLN covered bonds at
floating rates. The interest rates on the loans are indexed by the 3M WIBOR rate.
The mortgage loan margin is excluded from the hedge;

= fixed-rate covered bonds issued in a foreign currency.

THE PERIOD IN The period in which cash flows are expected to occur and affect the financial results: January

WHICH cAsH Frows 2019 - August 2024.
ARE EXPECTED
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CHANGE IN THE FAIR
HEDGING NOMINALVALUE OF CARRYING AMOUNT/FAIR INEFFECTIVE PORTION OF VSR IT
VALUE OF HEDGING CASH FLOW HEDGES
DERIVATIVE HEDGING DERIVATIVE oo o1 e CECOGNLZED IN The INcome HEDGING
INSTRUMENTS  INSTRUMENTS STATEMENT INSTRUMENT SINCE
Assets Liabilities DESIGNATION
31122018
2076360
CIRSEUR/PLN  ed EUR 162,100 14,786 1334
float PLN 8,858,819 143,605
2,173 '
FX forward purchase EUR 237 468 (24)
sale EUR 1,656
31122017
CIRSEUR/PLN  TXeJ EUR 1,576,900 . 217,009 (5,070)
float PLN 6,757,590 (220539)
FX forward purchase EUR 1,733 338 39N - ’
sale EUR 1558

The average fixed rate weighted with the nominal value for CIRS transactions amounted to 0.585% as at 31 December
2018, and 0.527% as at 31 December 2017.

HEDGED ITEMS

CHANGE IN THE FAIR

CARRYING AMOUNT OF ITEM IN THE STATEMENT OF VALUE THE HEDGED

HEDGED ITEMS FINANCIAL POSITION ITEMS SINCE
DESIGNATION

31.12.2018
variable interest loans in PLN 8,858,819 Loans and advances to customers

¥ ; (150,942)
ﬁxed |ntere§t mortgage covered bonds issued 8,930,571 Mortgage covered bonds issued
in a convertible currency
31.12.2017
variable interest loans in PLN 6,757,590 Loans and advances to customers

216,957

fixed-interest mortgage covered bonds issued
in a convertible currency

6,577,822 Mortgage covered bonds issued

STRATEGY 2

HEDGES AGAINST FLUCTUATIONS IN CASH FLOWS FROM FLOATING INTEREST RATE LOANS IN PLN,
RESULTING FROM THE RISK OF CHANGES IN INTEREST RATES, USING IRS TRANSACTIONS

DESCRIPTION OF THE
HEDGING RELATIONSHIP

HEDGED RISK

HEDGING INSTRUMENTS

HEDGED ITEM

THE PERIOD IN WHICH
CASH FLOWS ARE
EXPECTED

Elimination of the risk of cash flow fluctuations generated by floating interest rate PLN loan
portfolio resulting from the risk of changes in interest rates in the period covered by the
hedge using IRS transactions.

Interest rate risk.

IRS (Interest Rate Swap) transactions where the Bank pays coupons based on floating 3M
WIBOR rate, and receives coupons based on a fixed rate on the nominal value for which
they were concluded.

A part of the portfolio of home loans in PLN indexed to the WIBOR 3M floating rate. The
margin on mortgage loans is excluded from hedging.

The period in which cash flows are expected to occur and affect the financial results:
January 2019 - August 2028.
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CARRYING AMOUNT/FAIR INEFFECTIVE PORTION OF  CHANGE IN THE FAIR

HEDGING NOMINAL VALUE OF VALUE OF HEDGING CASH FLOW HEDGES VALUE OF THE

DERIVATIVE HEDGING DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS RECOGNIZED IN THE INCOME HEDGING

INSTRUMENTS INSTRUMENTS STATEMENT INSTRUMENT SINCE
Assets Liabilities DESIGNATION

31.12.2018

IRS PLN PLN 325,000 5,952 - 63 6,165

31.12.2017

IRS PLN PLN 265,000 - 377 (24) (165)

The average fixed rate weighted with the nominal value for IRS transactions amounted to 2.84% as at 31 December
2018, and 2.69% as at 31 December 2017.

CHANGE IN THE FAIR

HEDGED ITEMS CARRYING AMOUNT OF ITEM IN THE STATEMENT OF VALUE THE HEDGED
HEDGED ITEMS FINANCIAL POSITION ITEMS SINCE
DESIGNATION
31.12.2018
|variab|e interest loans in PLN 325,000 Loans and advances to customers (6,248)|
31.12.2017
variable interest loans in PLN 265,000 Loans and advances to customers 114
FINANCIAL INFORMATION
31.12.2018 31.12.2017
CARRYING AMOUNT / FAIR VALUE OF
DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS DESIGNATED AS e e
CASH FLOW HEDGES Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
IRS 5,952 - - 377
CIRS 162,100 14,786 - 217,009
FX forward 237 468 338 391
Total 168,289 15,254 338 217,777

The Bank concludes and maintains derivative instruments exclusively for hedging purposes.

NOMINAL VALUE OF HEDGING INSTRUMENTS
3 months to

BY MATURITY up to 1 month 1 to 3 months 1 ear 1to5years over 5years Total
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2018 y

IRS
PLN fixed-float - - - 265,000 60,000 325,000
CIRS
float PLN sale - - - 4,514,349 4,344,470 8,858,819
fixed EUR purchase (original currency) - - - 1,052,370 1,023,990 2,076,360
FX forward
PLN sale - - - 6,607 4122 10,729
EUR purchase (original currency) - - - 1,340 833 2,173
PLN purchase 435 - 1,497 5,731 - 7,663
EUR sale (original currency) 101 - 329 1,226 - 1,656
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NOMINAL VALUE OF HEDGING INSTRUMENTS
8Y MATURITY
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2017

up to 1 month 1 to 3 months

IRS
PLN fixed-float - -
CIRS
float PLN sale - -
fixed EUR purchase (original currency) - -
FX forward
PLN sale - -
EUR purchase (original currency) - -
PLN purchase 86 -
EUR sale (original currency) 20 -

ACCUMULATED OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME ON CASH FLOW HEDGES
AND IMPACT ON OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Accumulated other comprehensive income on cash flow hedges as at the
beginning of the period, gross

Gains / (Losses) recognized in other comprehensive income during the period

Amounts transferred from other comprehensive income to the income
statement during the period
- interest income
- Interest expense
- net foreign exchange gains/(losses)
Accumulated other comprehensive income on cash flow hedges as at the end of
the period, gross
Tax effect
Accumulated other comprehensive income on cash flow hedges as at the end of
the period, net

Ineffective portion of cash flow hedges recognized
in the income statement

Impact on other comprehensive income during the period, gross
Deferred tax on cash flow hedges
Impact on other comprehensive income during the period, net

CALCULATION OF ESTIMATES

3 months to
1 year

1to 5 years

- 265,000 -

- 2383445 47374145

- 552,510 1,024,390

- 6,036 2,549

- 1,224 509

1,438 5,364 325

323 1,149 66

31.12.2018 31.12.2017

(38,730) (21,870)
213,920 (333,532)
(101,779) 316,672
(1,184) (477)
149,494 86,026
(250,089) 231,123
73411 (38,730)
(13,949) 7,358
59,462 (31,372)
1373 (5,094)
112,141 (16,860)
(21,307) 3,203
90,834 (13,657)

over 5 years Total

265,000

6,757,590
1,576,900

8,585
1,733
7,213
1,558

The Bank conducted a simulation to assess the potential impact of changes in the yield curves on the transaction

value.
ESTIMATED CHANGE IN THE VALUATION b LI o LAY
AT A PARALLEL MOVE OF YIELD CURVES: +50bp. -50 b.p. +50bp. -50 b.p.
scenario scenario scenario scenario
IRS (5.273) 5273 (4,151) 4151
CIRS (200809) 200809 |  (173196) 173196
FX forward 4 (4) 4 (4)

271. SECURITIES

ACCOUNTING POLICIES AS OF 1 JANUARY 2018

As of 1 January 2018 the Bank classifies debt securities to the following categories:

= Financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss:
= financial instruments held for trading;

= financial assets not held for trading, measured at fair value through profit or loss on a mandatory basis;
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= financial assets designated to be measured at fair value through profit or loss at initial recognition.
= Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income.
= Financial assets are measured at amortized cost.
The debt securities’ classification and measurement policies have been described in Note 4 “IFRS 9 Financial
instruments”.
ACCOUNTING POLICIES UNTIL 31 DECEMBER 2017

Until 31 December 2017 the Bank classified debt securities to the following categories:

= financial instruments held for trading;

= financial instruments designated at fair value through profit or loss;

= investment securities available for sale;

= investment securities held to maturity.

Respective policies have been described in detail in the annual Financial Statements of PKO Bank Hipoteczny SA for
the year ended 31 December 2017.

FINANCIAL INFORMATION

SECURITIES 31.12.2018 01.01.2018 31.12.2017
Available -for-sale investment securities, including: 830,489
issued by the State Treasury, PLN Treasury bonds 830,489
Measured at fair value through other comprehensive income 842,965 830,489
issued by the State Treasury, PLN Treasury bonds 842,965 830,489
Total 842,965 830,489 830,489
SECURITIES BY MATURITY 31.12.2018 31.12.2017
Issued by the State Treasury, PLN Treasury bonds
up to 1 month 186,506 100,797
1to 5 years 479,474 614,160
over 5 years 176,985 115,532
Total 842,965 830,489
SECURITIES BY NOMINAL VALUE
AND AVERAGE YIELD 31.12.2018 31.12.2017
Issued by the State Treasury, PLN Treasury bonds 836,480 826,480
Average yield 1.78% 1.81%

Information on credit risk exposure in connection with securities is provided in Note 42 “Credit risk management”.

The whole balance of securities as at 1 January 2018 and 31 December 2018 was classified in Stage 1. There were no
transfers of securities between the stages in the year ended 31 December 2018.

SECURITIES PUT UP AS COLLATERAL
DEPOSIT GUARANTEE FUND

As at 31 December 2018, the Deposit Guarantee Fund (hereinafter: “OGF”) amounted to PLN 17 thousand, and the
Bank held Treasury bonds with a carrying value of PLN 20 thousand to cover the DGF. As at 31 December 2017,
these amounts were PLN 10 thousand and PLN 20 thousand respectively. As at 31 December 2018 and 31 December
2017, the Bank did not maintain any deposits covered by the guarantee.

FUNDS SECURING LIABILITIES IN RESPECT OF CONTRIBUTIONS TO THE BANK GUARANTEE FUND

As at 31 December 2018, the contribution to the bank resolution fund, which is contributed as an obligation to pay to
the Bank Guarantee Fund (“BGF”), amounted to PLN 1,367 thousand, and the Bank held Treasury bonds with a
carrying value of PLN 1,708 thousand to cover the contribution. As at 31 December 2017, the Bank did not held any
Treasury bonds for the purposes of covering the BGF contribution in the form of an obligation to pay.
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Such funds are treated as assets pledged as collateral for own liabilities, they cannot be pledged or encumbered in
any way, are excluded from judicial or administrative enforcement proceedings and do not form part of the estate in
bankruptcy.

COLLATERAL FOR MORTGAGE COVERED BONDS

The amount of additional collateral entered in the covered bonds cover pool maintained in the form of Treasury
securities in PLN was PLN 251,000 thousand as at 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017. The disclosure of
assets in the covered bonds cover pool is described in Note 29.

22.LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS

ACCOUNTING POLICIES AS OF 1 JANUARY 2018

As of 1 January 2018 the Bank classifies loans and advances to customers to the following categories:

= measured at amortized cost;

= measured at fair value through other comprehensive income;

= measured at fair value through profit or loss.

The classification and measurement policies in respect of loans and advances to customers have been described in
Note 4 “IFRS 9 Financial instruments”.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES UNTIL 31 DECEMBER 2017

The respective policies have been described in detail in the annual financial statements of PKO Bank Hipoteczny SA
for the year ended 31 December 2017.

FINANCIAL INFORMATION

LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS 31.12.2018 01.01.2018 31.12.2017
Measured at amortized cost
Housing loans, gross, including: 21,098,742 16,047,682 16,047,541
loans granted 8,781,520 5,251,257 5,251,206
acquired receivables 12,317,222 10,796,425 10,796,335
Impairment allowances (IAS 39) (5,068)
Allowances for expected credit losses (IFRS 9) (28,273) (19,707)
Housing loans, net 21,070,469 16,027,975 16,042,473

In 2018 the Bank purchased, based on the Framework Agreement for the Sale of Receivables signed with PKO Bank
Polski SA on 17 November 2015, mortgage covered housing loan receivables portfolios in the amount of PLN
2,524,086 thousand, and in 2017 - in the amount of PLN 5,553,538 thousand. The purchase price was determined on
an arm’s length basis, based on the valuation made by an independent expert. The receivables purchased were
recognized on the transfer dates set in the Receivables Sale Agreements, on which the Bank acquired the rights to the
cash flows from individual portfolios, and assumed all related liability for costs and economic risks in the constituent
receivables. The purchase of the receivable portfolios was financed by the liability the nature of which is described in
Note 27. The Bank ultimately refinances the purchased receivable portfolios primarily through issuing mortgage
covered bonds.

Loans granted and receivables purchased that have been entered in the Bank’s cover pool represent collateral for
mortgage covered bonds issued, as described in Note 29.

Information about the quality of the loan portfolio is also presented in Note 42.4 “Forecasting and monitoring of
credit risk”.

Information relating to credit risk exposure in respect of loans and advances to customers measured at amortized
cost have been described for 2018 in Note 23 “Expected credit losses” and for 2017 in Note 24 “Impairment
allowances in respect of financial assets - in accordance with IAS 39”.
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23. EXPECTED CREDIT LOSSES

ESTIMATES AND ASSESSMENTS BINDING AS OF 1 JANUARY 2018

The allowance for expected credit losses is recognized in the financial statements as follows:

= Financial assets measured at amortized cost: the allowance decreases the gross carrying amount of the financial
asset; changes in the allowance are recognized in the income statement;

= Off-balance sheet liabilities of a credit nature and financial guarantees: the allowance is presented as a provision in
liabilities; changes in allowances are recognized in the income statement;

= Financial instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income: the carrying amount of an
asset carried at fair value is additionally decreased by the amount of the allowances; measurement changes are
however each time divided into the component related to impairment - recognized in the income statement - and
the component related to other fair value measurement changes - recognized in other comprehensive income.

A detailed description of changes in the area of impairment binding as of 1 January 2018 and related to the
implementation of IFRS 9 has been described in Note 4 “IFRS 9 Financial instruments”.

FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Page 42/100



This document is a translation of a document originally issued in Polish. The only binding version is the original Polish version.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF PKO BANK HIPOTECZNY SA
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
(IN PLN ‘000)

ALLOWANCES FOR EXPECTED CREDIT LOSSES

FINANCIAL ASSETS AND ALLOWANCES FOR  /\SS€ts With no significant

]
ﬁ Bank Hipoteczny

Allowances for Assets with a significant Allowances for Allowances Total

Credit-impaired

EXPECTED CREDIT LOSSES !n'crease in c1:e'd|t risk since expef:ted !n.cTease in cr.e'dlt risk since ' expef:ted assets, gross for e?(pected Total gross  allowances fo'r
AS AT 31.12.2018 initial recognition, gross credit losses initial recognition, but not credit credit losses (Stage 3) credit losses  amount expected credit
T (Stage 1) (Stage 1) impaired, gross (Stage 2) (Stage 2) 9 (Stage 3) losses

Measured at fair value through OCI
securities 842,965 - - - - - 842,965 -
issued by the State Treasury, PLN Treasury 842,965 i i i i i 842,965 i
bonds
Total 842,965 - - - - - 842,965 -
Measured at amortized cost
amounts due from banks 22 - - - - - 22 -
loans and advances to customers 20,823,722 (7,108) 266,928 (17,979) 8,092 (3,186) 21,098,742 (28,273)
housing loans 20,823,722 (7,108) 266,928 (17,979) 8,092 (3,186) 21,098,742 (28,273)
loans granted 8,636,038 (3,480) 143,432 (10,730) 2,050 (922) 8,781,520 (15,132)
acquired receivables 12,187,684 (3,628) 123,496 (7,249) 6,042 (2,264) 12,317,222 (13,141)
other financial assets 449 - - - - - 449 _
Total 20,824,193 (7,108) 266,928 (17,979) 8,092 (3,186) 21,099,213 (28,273)
As at 31 December 2018 there were no purchased or originated credit-impaired assets (POCI).
. Nominal amount of loan
Nominal amount of loan - . . o . . -
commitments with no Provisions for commitments with a significant Provisions for Nominal amount of  Provisions for Total provisions
LOAN COMMITMENTS AND PROVISIONS L . . . loan increase in credit risk since loan credit-impaired loan loan Total nominal P
significant increase in credit . L " . . . . for loan
AS AT 31.12.2018 o Frormem g " commitments initial recognition, but not credit commitments commitments commitments amount .
risk since initial recognition o commitments
(Stage 1) (Stage 1) impaired (Stage 2) (Stage 3) (Stage 3)
9 (Stage 2)
Loan commitments | 717,808 (103) 1,409 (41) - - 719,217 (144)|
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FINANCIAL ASSETS AND ALLOWANCES FOR  /\SS€ts with no significant

Allowances for

B [
AS AT 01.01.2018 (Stage 1) (Stage 1)
Measured at fair value through OCI
securities 830,489 -
issued by the State Treasury, PLN Treasury 830,489 )
bonds
Total 830,489 -
Measured at amortized cost
amounts due from banks 5,350 -
loans and advances to customers 15,876,720 (3,776)
housing loans 15,876,720 (3,776)
loans granted 5,186,117 (1,127)
acquired receivables 10,690,603 (2,649)
other financial assets 99 -
Total 15,882,169 (3,776)

]
ﬁ] Bank Hipoteczny

Assets with a significant Total

. . Allowances
increase in credit risk since

Allowances for Credit-impaired

As at 1 January 2018 there were no purchased or originated credit-impaired assets (POCI).

Nominal amount of loan

Provisions for

commitments with no

LOAN COMMITMENTS AND PROVISIONS sianificant increase in credit loan

AS AT 01.01.2018 'gnificant Ine * commitments
risk since initial recognition (Stage 1)
(Stage 1) 9

Loan commitments 682,135 (69)

L o ., expected for expected Total gross  allowances for
initial recognition, but not credit =" assets, gross . .
L credit losses credit losses  amount expected credit
impaired, gross (Stage 2) (Stage 3) (Stage 3) losses
(Stage 2)
- - - - 830,489 -
- - - - 830,489 -
- - - - 830,489 -
- - - - 5,350 -
168,115 (14,963) 2,847 (968) 16,047,682 (19,707)
168,115 (14,963) 2,847 (968) 16,047,682 (19,707)
64,063 (7,777) 1,078 (412) 5,251,258 (9,316)
104,052 (7,186) 1,769 (556) 10,796,424 (10,391)
- - - - 99 -
168,115 (14,963) 2,847 (968) 16,053,131 (19,707)
Nominal amount of loan
commitments with a significant Provisions for Nominal amount of  Provisions for -
. . T W . Total provisions
increase in credit risk since loan credit-impaired loan loan Total nominal
L e . . . . for loan
initial recognition, but not credit: commitments commitments commitments amount commitments
impaired, gross (Stage 2) (Stage 3) (Stage 3)
(Stage 2)
797 (39) - - 682,932 (108)
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TRANSFERS BETWEEN IMPAIRMENT STAGES FOR FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES GRANTED

FINANCIAL ASSETS AS AT

31.12.2018 - TRANSFERS BETWEEN SUBJECT TO

STAGES

Measured at fair value through OCI

securities
issued by the State Treasury,
PLN Treasury bonds

Measured at amortized cost
amounts due from banks

loans and advances to customers
housing loans
loans granted
acquired receivables
other financial assets
Total financial assets

Carrying amount, gross

Impairment allowances

@
ﬁ] Bank Hipoteczny

Transfers between Movements between  Transfers between TOTAL Transfers between Movements between Transfers between
AMOUNTS NOT AMOUNTS NOT
Stage 1(S1) and Stage 2 (S2) and Stage 1 (S1) and CARRYING Stage 1(S1) and Stage 2 (S2) and Stage 1(S1) and
SUBJECT TO TOTAL, NET
TRANSFER N Stage2(S2) Stage 3 (83) Stage 3 (S3) AMOUNT, o Nsrerin  Stoge2(s2) Stage 3 (S3) Stage 3 (S3) ALLOWANCES
THE PERIOD from S1to fromS2to from S2to from S3to from S1to from S3to GROSS THE PERIOD from S1to from S2to from S2to from S3to from S1to from S3 to
S2 S1 S3 S2 S3 S1 S2 S1 S3 S2 S3 S1
842,965 - - - - - 842,965 - - - - - - - 842,965
842,965 - - - - - 842,965 - - - - - - - 842,965
22 - - - - - 22 - - - - - - - 22
20,777,724 212,386 102,110 2,951 556 3,015 21,098,742 (12,950)  (12,821) (562) (980) (13) (947) (28,273) 21,070,469
20,777,724 212,386 102,110 2,951 556 3,015 21,098,742 (12950)  (12,821) (562) (980) (13) (947) (28,273) 21,070,469
8,622,121 120,189 38,259 951 - - 8,781,520 (6,656) (8,067) (259) (150) - - (15,132) 8,766,388
12,155,603 92,197 63,851 2,000 556 3,015 12,317,222 (6,294) (4,754) (303) (830) (13) (947) (13,141) 12,304,081
449 - - - - - 449 - - - - - - - 449
21,621,160 212,386 102,110 2,951 556 3,015 21,942,178 (12,950)  (12,821) (562) (980) (13) (947) (28,273) 21,913,905

Transfers between impairment stages are presented in the gross carrying amount and amount of allowance as at 31 December 2018. In the case of loans and advances to customers,
which changed stages a number of times, the movement was presented as a transfer from the stage to which they belonged as at 1 January 2018 or upon initial recognition to the

impairment stage to which they belonged as at 31 December 2018.

LOAN COMMITMENTS AS AT

31.12.2018 - TRANSFERS BETWEEN SUBJECT TO

STAGES

Loan commitments

housing loans to individuals

Nominal value of loan commitments

Transfers between

Movements between

Transfers between

Provisions

Transfers between

Movements between

Transfers between

AMOUNTS NOT TOTAL AMOUNTS NOT
Stage 1 (S1) and Stage 2 (S2) and Stage 1 (S1) and NOMINAL  SUB Stage 1 (S1) and Stage 2 (S2) and Stage 1 (S1) and
JECT TO PROVISIONS TOTAL, NET
TRANSFER IN Stage 2 (S2) Stage 3 (S3) Stage 3 (S3) VALUE TRANSFER IN Stage 2 (S2) Stage 3 (S3) Stage 3 (S3)
THE PERIOD from S1to from S2to from S2to from S3to from S1to from S3 to THE PERIOD from S1to from S2to from S2to from S3to from S1to from S3 to
S2 S1 S3 S2 S3 S1 S2 S1 S3 S2 S3 S1
717,808 1,409 - - - - 719,217 (103) (41) - - - (144) 719,073
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CHANGES IN GROSS CARRYING AMOUNT OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

CHANGES IN GROSS CARRYING AMOUNTS
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Measured at fair value through OCI
securities
Total
including: assets measured on a group basis

Measured at amortized cost
amounts due from banks
loans and advances to customers
housing loans
other financial assets
Total
including: assets measured on a group basis

]
ﬁn Bank Hipoteczny

" The Bank writes down a part of the penalty interest it does not expect to recover.

CHANGES IN ALLOWANCES FOR EXPECTED CREDIT LOSSES

CHANGES IN ALLOWANCES FOR EXPECTED CREDIT As at

LOSSES ON FINANCIAL ASSETS

Measured at fair value through OCI
securities
Total
including: assets measured on a group basis

Measured at amortized cost
loans and advances to customers
housing loans
other financial assets
Total
including: assets measured on a group basis

Carrying In(:reasej due Changes due to Char.lges fiue to Decrease due to Changes due to Change§ due to Carrying
amount, to granting  Decrease due . modification . shortening the loss ., amount,
. disbursement of . lengthening the loss o . Other adjust-
gross and to derecogni- without L " . recognition horizon gross
. . tranches and " connection witha  recognition horizon from ot ments
as at purchasing  tion repauments derecognition, 12 months to lifetime from lifetime to 12 as at
01.01.2018  loans Pay net 31.12.2018
830,489 189,252 - (195,325) - - - - 18,549 842,965
830,489 189,252 - (195,325) - - - - 18,549 842,965
830,489 189,252 - (195,325) - - - - 18,549 842,965
5,350 - - (5,328) - - - - 22
16,047,682 5,622,777 (301,247) (338,288) 68,986 (100) 2,460 (3,528) - 21,098,742
16,047,682 5,622,777 (301,247) (338,288) 68,986 (100) 2,460 (3,528) - 21,098,742
99 449 - (99) - - - - - 449
16,053,131 5623226  (301,247) (343,715) 68,986 (100) 2,460 (3,528) - 21,099,213
16,053,032 5,622,777 (301,247) (343,616) 68,986 (100) 2,460 (3,528) - 21,098,764
Increase. due Changes due to Changes due to Change§ due to
to granting  Decrease due Changes due to Tt - shortening the loss .
. . .. modification lengthening the loss o . Other adjust- As at
and to derecogni- changes in credit . " . recognition horizon
01.01.2018 . . . without allowances due to  recognition horizon from S ments 31.12.2018
purchasing tion risk (net) o o from lifetime to 12
derecognition 12 months to lifetime
loans
19,707 4,041 (373) 2,243 619 (100) 10,339 (8,203) - 28,273
19,707 4,041 (373) 2,243 619 (100) 10,339 (8,203) - 28,273
19,707 4,041 (373) 2,243 619 (100) 10,339 (8,203) - 28,273
19,707 4,041 (373) 2,243 619 (100) 10,339 (8,203) - 28,273

The gross carrying amount as at 31 December 2018 of the portfolios of receivables acquired in 2018 amounted to PLN 2,425,999 thousand, and the allowance recorded for such

portfolios amounted to PLN 1,682 thousand.
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CALCULATION OF ESTIMATES

The Bank performed a simulation of allowances for expected credit losses resulting from a deterioration or
improvement in risk parameters.

ESTIMATED CHANGE IN IMPAIRMENT ALLOWANCES 31.12.2018 01.01.2018

ON EXPECTED CREDIT LOSSES RESULTING FROM THE

RISK PARAMETERS DETERIORATION OR +10% scenario -10% scenario +10% scenario -10% scenario
IMPROVEMENT, OF WHICH:'

changes in the probability of default 2,200 (2,524) 1,679 (1,885)
changes in recovery rates (7,202) 7,202 (5,575) 5,575

"(in plus - an increase in allowances; in minus - a decrease in allowances)

FINANCIAL ASSETS IMPAIRED UPON INITIAL RECOGNITION - POCI

As at 31 December 2018 and 1 January 2018, the Bank had no purchased or originated credit-impaired assets
(POCI).

24. ALLOWANCES ON IMPAIRMENT OF FINANCIAL ASSETS — COMPARATIVE DATA IN ACCORDANCE WITH
IAS 39

ESTIMATES AND ASSESSMENTS BINDING UNTIL 31 DECEMBER 2017

Respective accounting policies have been described in detail in the annual financial statements of PKO Bank
Hipoteczny SA for the year ended 31 December 2017.

FINANCIAL INFORMATION

IMPAIRMENT ALLOWANCES ON INCREASE DECREASE
LOANS AND ADVANCES - As at the Net increase -
RECONCILIATION OF MOVEMENTS . Recognized . Asattheend impacton the
beginning of . Reversed during . .

FOR PERIOD the period during the e perd of the period income
FROM 1) ANUARY 2017 period statement
TO 31 DECEMBER 2017
Amounts due from banks - - - - -
Loanslond advances to customers at 1,759 7509 4200 5,068 (3,309)
amortized cost

Non-financial sector 1,759 7,509 4,200 5,068 (3,309)

housing loans 1,759 7,509 4,200 5,068 (3,309)

Provisions for loan commitments 80 18 44 54 26
Total 1,839 7,527 4,244 5,122 (3,283)

25. INTANGIBLE ASSETS AND PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ESTIMATES

INTANGIBLE ASSETS  Intangible assets comprise identifiable non-monetary assets, which do not have a physical
form.

Recognition of intangible assets:
= software - computer software licenses acquired are recognized at the amount of the costs
incurred on their purchase and preparation for use, taking into account amortization and

impairment. Any subsequent expenditure on the maintenance of computer software is
recognized in costs when incurred;

= other intangible assets acquired by the Bank are recognized at the purchase price or cost of
manufacture less amortization and total impairment allowances;

= the costs of completed development projects are recognized in intangible assets when
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PROPERTY, PLANT
AND EQUIPMENT

EXPENDITURE

AMORTIZATION AND
DEPRECIATION

IMPAIRMENT OF
NON-FINANCIAL
NON-CURRENT
ASSETS

ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

AMORTIZATION AND
DEPRECIATION
PERIODS

economic benefits are obtained and specific conditions are satisfied, i.e. if there is a
possibility and intention to complete and use the asset, appropriate technical and financial
means are available to complete the work and use the asset and the amount of expenditure
incurred during development work, which can be allocated to the development of intangible
assets, can be assessed reliably.

Property, plant and equipment is recognized at the end of a reporting period at the purchase
price or cost of manufacture less depreciation and impairment.

The carrying amount of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets is increased by
additional expenditure incurred over the period of their use.

Amortization and depreciation is charged on all intangible assets and property, plant and
equipment whose value decreases due to their use or lapse of time under the straight-line
method over the estimated useful life of a given asset. The amortization/depreciation method
and useful life are verified at least once a year.

At the end of each reporting period the Bank assesses whether there are any indications of
impairment of any non-financial non-current assets (or cash-generating units). When such
indications are recognized and each year in the case of intangible assets which are not
amortized, the Bank estimates the recoverable amount, which is the higher of the following two
amounts: the fair value less costs to sell and the value in use of the non-current asset (or the
cash-generating unit), and if the carrying amount of the asset exceeds its recoverable amount,
the Bank recognized an impairment allowance in the income statement. In order to estimate
these amounts it is necessary to adopt assumptions concerning, among other things, the
projected future cash flows that the Bank may obtain from further use or sale of a given non-
current asset (or a cash-generating unit). Adopting different assumptions concerning the
valuation of future cash flows could affect the carrying amount of non-current assets.

If there are any indications of impairment of common assets, i.e. assets that do not generate
cash inflows independently from other assets or groups of assets, and the recoverable amount
of a single common asset cannot be established, the Bank determines the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit to which a given asset belongs.

This allowance is reversed if the estimations used to determine the recoverable amount have
changed.

The following factors are taken into account in estimating the useful lives of different types of
property, plant and equipment and intangible assets:

= expected wear and tear estimated based on the average periods of use recorded to date,
reflecting the rate of wear and tear, intensity of use etc;

= technological or market obsolescence;
= legal and other restrictions of the asset’s use;

= expected utilization of an asset estimated based on the expected production capacity or
volume;

= other circumstances affecting the useful life of such assets.
If the period of using an asset results from contractual provisions, its useful life corresponds to

the period resulting from the contract. If the estimated useful life is shorter than the period
resulting from the contract, the estimated useful life is taken into account.

It is assumed that the residual value of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets is
zero, unless a third party has made a commitment to purchase them or there is (and will
continue to exist as at the end of their useful life) an active market for such assets and their
value on that market can be estimated.

Amortization and depreciation periods for the basic groups of intangible assets and property,
plant and equipment applied by PKO Bank Hipoteczny SA:
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Leasehold improvements
Machinery and equipment
Computer hardware

INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Software

FINANCIAL INFORMATION
INTANGIBLE ASSETS

FOR THE PERIOD FROM 1 JANUARY 2018
TO 31 DECEMBER 2018

Carrying amount as at the beginning of the period, gross
Purchase
Transfers

Carrying amount as at the end of the period, gross

Accumulated amortization as at the beginning of the period
Amortization charge
Accumulated amortization as at the end of the period

Carrying amount as at the beginning of the period, net
Net carrying amount as at the end of the period

FOR THE PERIOD FROM 1 JANUARY 2017
TO 31 OECEMBER 2017

Carrying amount as at the beginning of the period, gross
Purchase
Transfers

Carrying amount as at the end of the period, gross

Accumulated amortization as at the beginning of the period
Amortization charge
Accumulated amortization as at the end of the period

Carrying amount as at the beginning of the period, net
Net carrying amount as at the end of the period

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

FOR THE PERIOD FROM 1 JANUARY 2018
TO 31 DECEMBER 2018

Carrying amount as at the beginning of the period, gross
Purchase
Transfery
Scrapping and sale

Carrying amount as at the end of the period, gross

Accumulated depreciation as at the beginning of the period
Depreciation charge
Scrapping and sale

Accumulated depreciation as at the end of the period

Net carrying amount as at the beginning of the period
Net carrying amount as at the end of the period

OEPRECIATION PERIODS
10 years
from 2 to 5 years
3 years

Intangible assets

AMORTISATION PERIODS
from 2 to 5 years

. Software Total
under construction
- 8,303 8,303
459 47 506
(230) 230 -
229 8,580 8,809
- (2,719) (2,719)
- (1,925) (1,925)
- (4,644) (4,644)
- 5,584 5,584
229 3,936 4,165
Intangible asset.s Software Total
under construction
2,670 4,145 6,815
1,488 - 1,488
(4,158) 4,158 -
- 8,303 8,303
- (1,503) (1,503)
- (1,216) (1,216)
- (2,719) (2,719)
2,670 2,642 5,312
- 5,584 5,584
z;?jp:r:(j?’ [[:::tt Leasehold  Machinery
uip improve- and Other Total
it ments equipment
construction quip
34 789 403 1,226
- 131 - 131
- (26) - (26)
34 894 403 1,331
(6) (441) (209) (656)
(5) (167) (80) (252)
- 26 - 26
(11) (582) (289) (882)
28 348 194 570
- 23 312 114 449
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Property, plant

FOR THE PERIOD FROM 1 JANUARY 2017 and equipment  Lcesehold - Machinery

TO 31 DECEMBER 2017 under e @nd Oliar Ve
. ments equipment
construction

Carrying amount as at the beginning of the period, gross ) 34 >34 391 965

Purchase 83 - 172 6 261

Transfers (83) - 83 - -
Carrying amount as at the end of the period, gross - 34 789 403 1,226
Accumulated depreciation as at the beginning of the period - (3) (253) (129) (385)

Depreciation charge - (3) (188) (80) (271)
Accumulated depreciation as at the end of the period - (6) (447) (209) (656)
Net carrying amount as at the beginning of the period - 31 281 268 580
Net carrying amount as at the end of the period - 28 348 194 570

The item “Other” comprises mainly the Bank’s furniture.

LEGAL LIMITATIONS RELATING TO THE BANK’S TITLE

In the years 2018 and 2017, there were no intangible assets or property, plant and equipment items to which the
Bank’s legal title would be limited or pledged as collateral for the Bank’s liabilities.

26. OTHER ASSETS

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Financial assets recognized in this item are measured at amounts due, including interest on such assets (if any) and
taking into account allowances for expected credit losses. Non-financial assets are measured in accordance with the
principles applicable to the specific categories of assets recognized in this item.

FINANCIAL INFORMATION

OTHER ASSETS 31.12.2018 31.12.2017
Deferred costs and prepaid expenses, including: 7,456 9,085
deferred costs relating to the overdraft facility 2,103 2,583
deferred costs relating to unsecured bonds issuance programme” 290 684
deferred costs relating to mortgage covered bonds issuance programme " 1,948 2,309
other prepaid expenses 3,115 3,509
Deferred costs and commission relating to loans granted, proportionally
to undrawn principal 8829 7,946
Settlements relating to appraisal reports on Property Value for Mortgage Lending
Purposes (BHWN) 443 66
Settlements under the public law 35 99
Other 6 33
Total 16,769 17,229
of which financial assets 449 99

Y Costs associated with issue programmes relate to the issue programmes as a whole and cannot be allocated to the individual
issues executed as part of the programmes.

27. AMOUNTS DUE TO BANKS

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Amounts due to banks are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method. If a schedule of future
cash flows cannot be determined for a financial liability (and, therefore, the effective interest rate cannot be
determined), the liability is measured at the amount due.
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FINANCIAL INFORMATION

AMOUNTS DUE TO BANKS 31.12.2018 31.12.2017

Measured at amortized cost

overdraft within the limit available 10,513 -
liabilities in respect of overdraft facilities 1,881,512 1,627,461
liabilities in respect of term loans 100,007 -
liability in respect of the purchase of receivables 2,300,254 2,497,918
Total 4,292,286 4,125,379

LIABILITIES IN RESPECT OF LOANS

Liability as at Liability as at

LENDER Dl w? Maturity date e 31 December 31 December
agreement loan granted drawn 2018 2017

PKO Bank Polski SA 29.10.2015 29.10.2021 1,500,000 1,400,000 828,580 -

PKO Bank Polski SA 02.02.2017 02.02.2020 1,500,000 1,500,000 902,924 1,477,453

Another bank 1 05.06.2017  10.06.2019 150,000 150,000 150,008 150,008

Another bank 2 27.12.2018 28.12.2020 100,000 100,000 100,007 -

Total 3,250,000 3,150,000 1,981,519 1,627,461

LIABILITY IN RESPECT OF THE PURCHASE OF RECEIVABLES The line “Liability in respect of the purchase of receivables”
represents the liability arising from the transactions of purchase of mortgage-backed housing loan portfolios from
PKO Bank Polski SA, as specified in Note 22. The maturity date of the liability resulting from the purchase of
receivables is agreed by the parties in the Receivables Sale Agreement for each transaction. For receivables acquired
in 2018, the parties agreed that the payment would be due no later than 12 months from the date of transfer. If the
liability is not settled within 1 month from the date of transfer, the principal amount is subject to interest. The Bank
ultimately refinances the purchased receivable portfolios primarily through the issue of mortgage covered bonds. The
liability resulting from the purchase of receivables at 31 December 2018 concerns portfolios purchased as of the
second quarter of 2018, whereas as at 31 December 2017 the liability concerned portfolios purchased in the fourth
quarter of 2017.

28. AMOUNTS DUE TO CUSTOMERS

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Due to the fact that the repayment schedule cannot be determined, amounts due to customers are measured at
amounts due. Amounts due comprise loan overpayments only. The Bank does not accept deposits.

FINANCIAL INFORMATION

AMOUNTS DUE TO CUSTOMERS 31.12.2018 31.12.2017

Measured at amortized cost
amounts due to retail customers- overpaid loans 4359 2,099

Total 4,359 2,099

29. MORTGAGE COVERED BONDS ISSUED

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Liabilities in respect of covered bonds issued are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method.

FINANCIAL INFORMATION
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MORTGAGE COVERED BONDS ISSUED 31.12.2018 31.12.2017
Measured at amortized cost

covered bonds 12,841,500 8,883,213
Total 12,841,500 8,883,213
REPAYMENT PERIOD OF MORTGAGE COVERED BONDS ISSUED 31.12.2018 31.12.2017
1to 5 years 6,933,749 4,102,528
over 5 years 5,907,751 4,780,685
Total 12,841,500 8,883,213

MORTGAGE COVERED BONDS ISSUED AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2018

Rate
Nominal Interest rate as . - q
ISIN Currency value ot 31.12.2018 +margin/fixed Issue date Maturity Quotation market
rate
WIBOR3M + Bondspot
. )
PLPKOHP00017 | PLN 30,000 2.47% 0.75 pp. 11122015 11922020 oot market
WIBOR3M + Bondspot,
. )
PLPKOHP00025 PLN 500,000 2.37T% 0.65 p.p. 27.04.2016 28.04.2021 WSE alternative market
WIBOR3M + Bondspot,
. ,
PLPKOHP00033 PLN 500,000 231% 0.59 p.p. 17.06.2016 18.06.2021 WSE alternative market
fixed rate LuxSE
. )
X$1508351357 EUR 500,000 0-13% during the period 24.10.2016 24.06.2022 WSE alternative market
X$1559882821 | EUR 25,000 0820  Xedrale 09002017 02022024  LuxSE
during the period
fixed rate LuxSE
. ,
X$1588411188 EUR 500,000 0-63% during the period 30.03.2017 24.01.2023 WSE alternative market
WIBOR3M + Bondspot,
. )
PLPKOHP00041 PLN 500,000 2.41% 069 pp. 28.04.2017 18.05.2022 WSE alternative market
fixed rate Bondspot,
. )
PLPKOHP00058 PLN 265,000 269% during the period 22.06.2017 10.09.2021 WSE alternative market
fixed rate LuxSE
. )
X851690669574 EUR 500,000 0.75% during the period 21.09.2017 21.08.2024 WSE alternative market
WIBOR3M + Bondspot
. ,
PLPKOHP00066 PLN 500,000 2.32% 0.60 pp. 27.10.2017 27.06.2023 WSE alternative market
fixed rate
X81709552696 EUR 54,000 0.47% . ) 02.11.2017 03.11.2022  LuxSE
during the period
fixed rate LuxSE
. )
XS1795407979 EUR 500,000 0.75% during the period 22.03.2018 24.01.2024 WSE alternative market
WIBOR3M + Bondspot,
. )
PLPKOHP00074 PLN 700,000 2.21% 0.49 p.p. 21.04.2018 25.04.2024 WSE alternative market
PLPKOHP00082 | PLN 100,000 2.04% WIBORSM +0.32 15052018 29.042022 BONdsPoL
p.p. WSE alternative market
WIBOR3M + Bondspot
. ,
PLPKOHP00090 | PLN 500,000 2.34% 0.62 p.p. 2107.2018 25072025 \\oF giternative market
fixed rate Bondspot.
. ,
PLPKOHP00108 | PLN 60,000 349% during the period 24082018 24.08.2028 WSE alternative market
WIBOR3M + Bondspot
. ,
PLPKOHP00116 PLN 230,000 2.38% 0.6 pop. 26.10.2018 28.04.2025 WSE alternative market

In 2018 the Bank carried out 5 issues of covered bonds denominated in PLN with a total value of PLN 1,590,000
thousand and one issue of covered bonds denominated in EUR with a value of EUR 500,000 thousand. In 2017, the
Bank carried out 3 issues of covered bonds denominated in PLN with the total value of PLN 1,265,000 thousand and
4 issues of covered bonds denominated in EUR with a value of EUR 1,079,000 thousand. The Bank did not redeem any
covered bonds in 2018 and in 2017.

As at 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017 the issued PLN- and EUR-mortgage covered bonds were rated by
Moody’s Investors Service at Aa3, i.e. the highest achievable by Polish securities. The limit for the ratings is the Polish
country ceiling for debt instruments, which currently is at the level of Aa3.
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The total nominal value of the issued mortgage covered bonds as at 31 December 2018 amounted to PLN 12,824,700
thousand, and as at 31 December 2017 - PLN 8,880,851 thousand.

SECURING THE MORTGAGE COVERED BONDS

The mortgage covered bonds are secured by loans secured by the highest priority mortgage. Additionally, the basis
for the issue of mortgage covered bonds may also be the Bank’s own funds:

= invested in securities issued or guaranteed by the National Bank of Poland, the European Central Bank, the
governments and central banks of the Member States of the European Union, the Organization for Economic
Cooperation and Development, with the exception of countries that are having or have had their foreign debt
restructured in the past 5 years;

= invested in the National Bank of Poland;
= held in cash.

The nominal value of loans entered in the Bank’s cover pool representing collateral for the covered bonds issued
totalled PLN 16,947,730 thousand at 31 December 2018, whereas the nominal value of additional collateral in the
form of PLN-denominated securities issued by the State Treasury amounted to PLN 251,000 thousand. As at 31
December 2017 it amounted to PLN 11,103,708 thousand and PLN 251,000 thousand respectively. The Bank’s
covered bonds cover pool also included CIRS and FX-Forward transactions hedging the currency and interest-rate
risk of issued covered bonds denominated in EUR and IRS transactions securing the interest rate risk of fixed rate
mortgage covered bonds issued in PLN.

In the first half of 2018 and in the previous years the Bank’s covered bonds cover pool did not include asset-backed
securities (ABS), which do not meet the requirements specified in paragraph 1 of Article 80 of the Guideline (EU)
2015/510 of the European Central Bank of 19 December 2014 on the implementation of the Eurosystem monetary
policy framework (ECB/2014/60) (recast).

30. UNSECURED BONDS ISSUED

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Liabilities in respect of bonds issued are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method.

FINANCIAL INFORMATION

UNSECURED BONDS ISSUED 31.12.2018 31.12.2017
Measured at amortized cost

bonds 3,311,148 2,428,025
Total 3,311,148 2,428,025
REPAYMENT PERIOD OF UNSECURED BONDS ISSUED 31.12.2018 31.12.2017
up to 1 month 384,312 364,083
1 to 3 months 454191 1,048,540
3 months to 1 year 2,122,605 1,015,402
1to 5 years 350,040 -
Total 3,311,148 2,428,025

In 2018 the Bank issued bonds of a total nominal value of PLN 7,836,400 thousand and redeemed bonds of a total
nominal value of PLN 6,948,200 thousand, whereas in 2017 it was PLN 6,188,800 thousand and PLN 4,904,600
thousand respectively.

The nominal value of the bonds issued as at 31 December 2018 amounted to PLN 3,328,400 thousand, and as at
31 December 2017 it amounted to PLN 2,440,200 thousand.
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BONDS ISSUED AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2018

BONDS

OW080219-123
OW230119-155
OW080819-157
OW050419-162
0OW230119-163
OW050419-166
OW050419-167
OW090519-168
OW090519-169
OW050219-170
OW251019-171
OW240119-172
OW190205-173
OW130219-174
OW220219-175
OW100619-176
OW100619-177
OW240119-178
OW190319-179
OW100619-180
OW260619-181
PLPKOHP00124

Nominal value Interest rate Issuance date Maturity

4,000 discount paper 09.02.2018 08.02.2019
262,000 discount paper 23.07.2018 23.01.2019
14,200 discount paper 08.08.2018 08.08.2019
722,800 discount paper 21.09.2018 05.04.2019
18,700 discount paper 21.09.2018 23.01.2019
55,000 discount paper 01.10.2018 05.04.2019
10,000 discount paper 05.10.2018 05.04.2019
40,000 discount paper 16.10.2018 09.05.2019
604,900 discount paper 22.10.2018 09.05.2019
23,400 discount paper 22.10.2018 05.02.2019
4,300 discount paper 26.10.2018 25.10.2019
50,000 discount paper 26.10.2018 24.01.2019
119,800 discount paper 13.11.2018 05.02.2019
68,000 discount paper 15.11.2018 13.02.2019
182,000 discount paper 21.11.2018 22.02.2019
233,000 discount paper 21.11.2018 10.06.2019
150,000 discount paper 17.12.2018 10.06.2019
54,100 discount paper 17.12.2018 24.01.2019
58,200 discount paper 19.12.2018 19.03.2019
204,000 discount paper 21.12.2018 10.06.2019
100,000 discount paper 28.12.2018 26.06.2019
350,000 floating 21.12.2018 21.02.2020

As at 31 December 2018, the guarantee described in Note 38.1 covered the bonds issued with a nominal value of
PLN 54,100 thousand, and as at 31 December 2017 - PLN 15,100 thousand.

31. OTHER LIABILITIES

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

LIABILITIES

COSTS PAYABLE

The liabilities recognized in this item are measured at the amounts due including interest, if
any. Non-financial liabilities are measured in accordance with the principles of measurement
applicable to the specific categories of liabilities recognized in this item.

The Bank recognizes accruals in respect of future payments in justified, reliably estimated
amounts that are necessary to fulfil the present obligation as at the end of the reporting

period.

The Bank also recognizes accruals in respect of costs which are attributable to the current
period, but will be incurred in the next period, including bonuses and unused holiday, taking
into account all outstanding days of holiday